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ASSEMBLYMAN WILLIAM J. PASCRELL, JR. (Chairman): Good 

morning. We are going to begin our hearing this morning. I 

want to thank you all for coming. This is a hearing concerning 

the County College's accreditation. I just want to make sure 

who the people are ~.vho are going to be testifying. Do you have 

my list there? 

MR. HESPE: (Committee Aide) Yes, I have it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I first want to introduce the 

people who you see up here. To my right is Assemblyman Joseph 

Mecca, who is serving on the Higher Education Committee right 

now. To his right is David Hespe, Office of Legislative 

Services.· To my immediate left is Larry Hamm, who is a member 

of the Assembly Majority_ Staff. Then we have Stan Counts, who 

follows me all over the State, and Diane Wiacek, ·from the 

Hearing Unit of the Office of Legislative Services . 

. All right, we have a list we are going to stick with 

in terms_of testimony. The first three people out of the cage 

will be: Mr .. Kep. Wright, Dr. Phil . Whi"te; who will represent 

the Chancellor -- Dr. White is the Vice Chancellor .:__ and 

Freeholder Norm Robertson. They will be the first three 

speakers. If anyone has a time problem please let us know, and 

VIe will try to accommodate you. .We will go until 12 or 12:30. 

We ·a·re ·prepared to come. back again ·early in the month -- early 

in June, if we have to finish up .. 

I want t9 start by reading a letter from the 

Chancellor, which I received~- It was sent to me on April 26: 

"Dear Assemblyman · Pascrell: ·The Passaic County Corrununi ty 

College recently received an order from the Middle States 

Association of Colleges and Schools to show cause why .the 

accreditation of the College should not be removed. 

"The action was taken on the recorrunendation of a 

Middle States team. that visited the College in· Octo~er 1989. 

The Commission on Higher Education. of the Middle States 
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Association informed the College, by action letter dated March 
16, 1990, that it found: 'No evidence to allay its ongoing 
serious concerns about the College Is progress in the areas of 
institutional planning and outcomes assessment. These concerns 
are also linked to larger issues of overall institutional 
operation, effectiveness, and financial and educational 
viability. I 

"Ordinarily, the Board of Higher Education accepts 
Middle States accreditation of an institution as sufficient for 
the continuance of institutional licensure and approval. 
Therefore, a show cause order is a very serious concern to the 
Board of Higher Education, in light of its institutional 
licensure _responsibility. 

"On April 12, at the invitation of Freeholder Director 
Richard DuHaime, I met with Freeholders, members of the Passaic 
~o~ty Commt:lnity College Board of Trustees, and President 
Wright to discuss implications of the show cause order. I have 
subsequently_ sent a letter to ·President Wright reiterat~ing 

concerns I discussed at the meeting on April 12. · T-he 
Department of Higher Education-~" By the way, the letter ·he 
sent to·President Wright is attached. 

"The Department of _Higher Education will continue to 
·work closely with the. Middl~ ·states and the College in their 
efforts to strengthe~ the governartce of the institution ~nd to 
correct deficie_ncies identified by th·e "Middle States I team with 
respect to iris~itutional. pla~riing and outcomes' assessment; · 

. . 
·"We will continue· to monitor the situation carefully, 

and will keep you informed. Sincerely, T. Ed Hollander, 
Chancellor of Higher Education" 

The letter to Ken Wright is very, very specific. 
Members of the Board of Trustees received· copies of that 

letter'· and ~ichard DuHaime, as well as the Board of Chosen 
Freeholders, received copies of that letter. 
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We are talking about the significance of the show 

cause action, the implications for the institution, which we 

have all worked very hard -- since 1972 -- to establish. as a 

fine institution of higher learning in Passaic County. So this 

is not chopped liver we are talking about today. We are 

talking about important matters. We want to know today -- by 

the end of this morning's hearing -- the impending situation; 

you know, where we are, where we are in terms of September? 

How can the Assembly Committee on Higher Education be of any 

assistance? That is what we are all about. 

So, let us start today. I would ask all speakers to 

be brief, and to the point. We don't want any Sermons on the 

Mount, not even from the Chairman who is me. Try to 

capsul:i:ze. Try to synthesize. Use the old Walt Porter 

method. Say -it like it is, then get the questions and get it 

over with. Right, Director Porter? (affirmative respon~~ from 

audience) 

Now, our first presentation this morning-- The Chair, 

if I feel anyone is going. on too long, will cut yoti off. I am 

permitted to do ~hat, right,- Stan? I get all of my orders from 

Stanley. 

Okay, ·so our· first presentation-- ·The first witness 

this mqrning will be Mr. Kenneth Wright, President of Passaic 

County Community College. Good morning, Ken. 

K E N N E T H E.. W R I G H T: Good morning. I think I can 

.get through this in about 10 minutes; theri answer any 

questions, if you would like. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I would think that Mr. Wright 

and Dr. White should be permitted, you know, at least 10 

minutes each. I would ask everyone else to stay within a 

five-minute framework. 

Mr, Wright: There are a number of attachments that 

are not part of my.remarks, but you will be able to sort them, 

skew them, as we go, I'm sure. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Fine. Everything wi 11 be on 
the record. Is that correct, Diane? (speaking to Hearing 
Reporter and receiving affirmative response) We are now ready 
to go, for the record. 

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman and Assemblyman Mecca: I 
thank you for the opportunity to testify on a matter dear to my 
heart. It is indeed a pleasure for me to welcome you here to 
Passaic County Community College. Let me begin by apologizing 
for the fact that our existing Board policies prevented us from 
accommodating you at the earlier date which was your first 
choice in the matter. I am aware of the fact that this caused 
you some difficulty, and I am pleased that you did not allow 
that to interfere with your decision to hold your hearing 
here. It is an honor for the College to be your host. 

As you no doubt have learned by now·, I have resigned 
the presidency at Passaic County Community _College· effective 
June 2, 1990. This fs a direct result of consternation and 
confusion surrounding the· findings of a visiting team from the 
Middle States Association. While I am here to· present to you 
·some views about the general considerations about the Middle 
States accreditation proc_ess, I am prepared to discuss, in as 
detailed a way a·s you see fit, the specifics of the Pa.ssaic_ 
Cot!nty. Community College's .. recent experience ·and, ·in 
particular, the Middle States repor~. I submit herewith a copy 
of that report, with passages which I believe to be 
particularly s~gnificant underscored. 

As an aside,· you deserve to be informed that the 
Middle States Association has a very strictly adhered to policy 
that portions of reports such as these are not to be taken out 
of context. · The question of whether or not they should be 
released is a decision up to the receiving institution, but in 
no event ·should they be released piecemeal. The purpose of 
that policy is_to avoid precisely the kind of distortion which 
has surrounded the episode at this institution in recent months. 
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Amid all the publicity of the last two decades about 
the decline of educational standards in the public schools, it 
is easy to lose sight of the fact that American higher 
education remains the best in the world. This is the 
conclusion of a recent study by the prestigious Carnegie 
Commission lead by Clark Kerr. It is also generally 
acknowledged around the world, a belief which manifests itself 
in a continuing stream of foreign nationals who come to the 
United States to study intending to return to their homeland. 
Dr. Kerr states unequivocally that in his op1n1on the two 
factors which contribute to the acknowledged superior quality 
of the American system of higher education are: 

1) Institutional autonomy -- the independence of the 
various institutions of higher education from other structures. 
such as government or corporate leadership; and 

2) The v.oluntary nature of the higher education 
approach to quality; in other words, the accredit:ation 
proce~s.. I wish. to agree most emphatically with Dr. Kerr Is 
assessment. 

The academic· enterprise is . so vital to the future. of 
this country that it combines ·with the vote and freedom of the 
press" to establish the foundation of our future. And history 
is replete with episodes sU:ch as· the ·Hitler youth, when a 
despot attempted to perpetuate his reign through the 
manipulation available in education. Obviously, mostly we 
don It deal with cirGumstances. that extreme. Even less 
egregious violations of institutional autonomy can be 
devastating, however, and we mus·t never relax our vigi 1 on that 
all important question. 

With that as a background, I wish to make before you 
today two points: 

One, the most.· serious problem confronting the new 

leadership at Passaic County Community College will be the 
continuing infringement upon the independence and institutional 
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autonomy of the College. This infringement manifests itself in 

an improper trustee appointment process and in improper 

communication between members of the Board of Chosen 

Freeholders and members of the Board of Trustees going quite 

beyond the appointment and budgeting processes envisioned by 

law. Indeed, it is sometimes evident in decisions made, or in 

some cases not made, by the Board of Trustees about matters 

which should be decided on the sole basis of academic merit. 

The second point I wish to make -- I wish to recommend 

to your consideration, is a general accommodation which was 

originally offered by the New Jersey Department of Higher 

Education for the ostensible purpose of easing the burden upon 

colleges of State licensure visits and ·Middle States 

accreditation visits. This accommodation has, in fact, 

resulted in a contamination of the Middle States prqcess. The 

latter process _was established fo~ the purpose of reviewing· th_e 
. . 

question. of how well t?e institution being rev~ewed ~erves the 
mission set.· before it~ st·ate licensure ·reviews· ·questions 

related to . brqader questions more regional in nature. Though. 

t~e difference is subtle, it c~n and,· indeed, at PCCC_ it_ did, 

thrust polftics into· what should have been a purely academic 

debate: I recommend that thes·e two . processes State 

licensure on the one hand, accr€ditation on the other, and both 

legitimate -- will be better served if they are kept s~parate. 

Now let me elaborate on those two points, if I may: 

N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-8_ states., in pe~tinent part: "The appointing 

authority of the county shall establish a trustee search 

committee of not less than· five members who shall be res.idents 

of the county. The members of the trustee search · committee 

shall not be elected public officials and shall not.be eligible 

for appointment to the board of trustees for a perio?- of six 

months after their.· service· on the trustee search committee. 

The trustee search committee shall nominate individuals 

according to criteria promulgated by the Board of Higher 

Education for consideration by the appointing authority of the 

county for appointment to the Board of Trustees." 
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It is possible that the appointment process at PCCC 

complies with the letter of the law. The process certainly 

does not comply with the law's spirit. I have never in 15 

years here known the name of a person who served on any trustee 

search committee, nor am I aware of any public solicitation for 

candidates. The resulting Board composition and conduct has 

not complied with the Middle States Association's Guidelines 

contained in the .. Characteristics of Excellence in Higher 

Education,.. published first in 1982 and revised most recently 

in February of 1990. You have in your packet there two pages 

copied from that booklet from Middle States. The pertinent 

part on page 30 refers to: .. The Board, functioning always as a 

collective body--'' our . trustees are sometimes asked by 

Freeholders to act independently of . the full Board. Each of 

the trustees knows which Freeholder· appointed them, and on page 

32: .. Members should t:epresent different points of view, 

interests, and experi~nces, as well as diversitr in age, rae~, 

ethni.c i ty, and gender. .. That is not a description of our Board 

.of Trustees. 

Nor is the. process or composition in agreement wit~ 

the Higher ·Education .. Guidelines for the. Selection. of_ Trustees 

·for County Colleges .. adopted by the. Board of Higher Education 
. ~ . 

on January 22, 1982. There is a copy of those guide.l ines. 

attached in yo.':lr. packet as well. An . important quest.ion that 

arises here, if I can be 1 ieve what I read ~- some of our 

Freeholder Board being quoted in the press recently-.,... They 

believe that the College is an . agency of the county. It is 

most assuredly not an agency of the county, and if you wish to. 

pursue that there is a New Jersey Supreme Court ruling to that 

effect somewhere back in the early '70s. I can get the 

. citation, if you would like. It has to do with a case at Ocean 

County College, where some employees of the college· sought 

Civil Service protection. According to the county,. civil 

servicing went all the way to the New Jersey Supreme Court, and 
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I. 

the Supreme Court said: Community colleges in New Jersey are 
not agencies of the county. In fact, it is a partnership. It 
is not an agency of the county. 

At minimum, the trustee search committee should-­
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Excuse me for one second, Ken. 

I'm sorry. 
MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Can that be done with a minimum 

of time, so we do not disrupt the present? (unidentified 
person arrives in room at this point with portable amplifying 
system to be set up) 

MR. WRIGHT: I will be happy to delay, Mr. Chai~man. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Will he have to start· over? (no 
response) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: ·As long as it is not blaring in 
anyone's ear. Try i_t out, Ken. (Mr. Wright· and Chairman test 
newly installed equipment for sound) Turn the mike on. There 
you go. 

MR. WRIGHT: o~ay? Can 
(negative - response from audience) 
coming ·through o~ei there? 

you· hear 
How about 

me back there? 
now? Anything 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You have to get right up close; 
I guess. That's go-od. Let's see what this does to our tape. 
Is it okay? (affirmative response from . Hearing Reporter) 
Thank you, -.Diane. 

MR. WRIGHT: At minimum, the trustee appointment 
process should be characterized by the following conditions: 

1) Appointments to · a trustee search committee should 
be made publicly known for a particular year and should be made . 
well in advance of the date when new trustee appointments are 
needed. 

2) An extensive search for interested a~d qualified 
candidates to serve as trustees should be conducted and be made 
widely public -- the search itself, that is. 
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3) Appointments should adhere to composition 

recommendations of Middle States and qualification guidelines 

promulgated by the New Jersey Soard of Hi~her Education. 

What we get instead at PCCC, are individual trustees 

appointed by individual Freeholders who sometimes continue 

direct communication links with the respec:tive trustees for the 

furtherance of political objectives, often at the expense of 

academic objectives. 

During the recent turmoil at PCCC, we were treated 

with several examples of individual Freeholders attempting to 

coerce individual trustees who obviously disagreed with them. 

This took the form of. abusive language, embarrassing public 

statements, and, in one outrageous case, a trustee being 

summoned from an· executive meeting by ·a Freehold.er in a blatant 

att.empt to coerce ·that trustee's position and ·to imprope·r ly 

influence the Board's discussion. 

I wish to emphasize that I ~ not here to impugn 

p~1 it ics, . which ·sometimes is unfairly criticized and,· in fact, · · 

is merely the way the best system in·the world --.ours-- makes 

public decisions -- and I support that proces~ ·. Nor; is it my 

purpose to single out i~divid~a1 officials or particular 

parties. The examples I cited abo~e· are simply recent examples 

of what has been a contiRu1~g problem in_the entire 20 years I 

have been associated with community colleges in New Jersey. 

The points of the Middle States and BHE guidelines are: 

1) To raise the caliber-of trustees who, as the title 

implies, should be charged with the public trust for colleges; 

. and 

2) To see that academic decisions are insulated, 

insofar as possible, from the vagaries of other political needs 

and expediences. In other words, they are an attempt to allow 

longer term issues of institutional integrity t6 survive short 

term mood swings. 
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The above-referred procedural examples were the most 

egregious instances of a creeping tendency toward increasing 

domination of the academic commuri].ty by the political body. 

And their purpose was the worst of reasons. The College had 

not been sufficiently responsive to political goals. But the 

consequences of such imposition of po~itical will is more clear 

in a recent substantive example: 

The College is space poor. It suffers from what is 

euphemistically referred to as overutilization of its physical 

plant. We were forced to discontinue a $180, ooo grant-funded 

REACH program, which our community badly needs, for lack of 

space. We lost the $180,000. We were forced. to turn away 

$tudents we could not · accommodate, and others who sought a 

full-time .load caul~' t complete their schedule for lack· of 

space. The resultant loss of revenue to the College ·is over 

$390,000 and counting. And yet, when we pr:oposed a modest · 

ex~ansion through lease, the Co~lege was prevented from 

acquiring desperately needed space. .'rhis occurred .. thr.o.ugh 

Freeholder influence upon the trustees because it did not serve 

Freeholder·re~lection _purposes. 

Recent growth of enrollment is choked off. for lack of· 

space. 

.A $2.3 millie~ grant is thr~atened by lack of housing 
for the badly needed program. Child care and student lounge 

services are absent-for want of space. Ironically, because of 

the funding partnership for PCCC, this results in ·an increas~d 

burden for the taxpayers in Passaic County of about $120,000 

per year and growing. ~en more ironically, it is the academic 

community at PCCC being blamed for lack of planning, when they 

have indeed planned but they have been thwarted .. 

In other words, · the Freeholders themselves have been 

the creators of the obstacles to planning which they now 

declare require corrective action on their part. It is much 

like the arsonist who wants to be seen as the hero when he 

comes in~ to rescue a person who is threatened by the flames. 
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If the body politic is serious about wanting a 

well-run College, they must find some additional physical plant 

and lend support to the faculty and staff so that this vibrant 

institution can realize its natural growth pattern. 

I would like to call your attention to the Middle 

States document which I have presented , to you. There are 

several passages in there that I think are significant, and at 

this moment I would 1 ike to call your attention to page 9 . 

There is an underscored section near the bottom which I think 

says all that needs to be said about. why the institution is 

having difficulty with planning: 

.. Planning is minimally a matter of prudent 

management. For Passaic County· Community. Coll~ge, it is a 

matter of survival. Many in· the College, including the top 

ad.Iitinistration, have clearly demonstrated by their efforts an 

· · understanding of the significance of planning to the 

educational viability of the College. Yet others .. -- ..r~otice 

th•at, yet others-- "over·a three-year period, have. permitted_ 

the College to continue to be buffeted about by external 

economic, demographic,. political, and historical forc_es, rather 

than exercise leadership in deterrnfning t·he College's future 

through planning: .. 

That prefty well concludes my prepared remarks, Mr. 

Chairman. · I would be happy to· respond to any comments or 

questions, and I thank you very much for the opportunity to be 

heard on that is obviously a very important matter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, President· Wright. 

Assemblyman Mecca? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: I will defer to you first. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yes, I have some thoughts. As 

you know, .there was much speculati~n about .. why this· Committee 

chose to have this hearing, and, by the way, we will be· looking 

at other matters in the State along these same lines~ 
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MR. WRIGHT: Good. I particularly commend to you the 

two major issues I have raised here, which I think are 

statewide in nature. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: We must be careful to follow 

your lead, not taking things out of context. So, while you 

read out of context certain parts of Middle States, there are 

other things in the Middle States report which share-- You 

know, there is plenty of blame or responsibility to be shared 

equally. What we are concerned about is that we should be 

playing on a level field, and that we zero in on what the major 

factors are. 

I have a difficult time. I am free to say these 

things now, because having been throu~h a campaign wheie I was 

accused of _everyth:lng but.being·an ax murderer--

MR. WRIGHT: Didn't I hear that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: That is behind tis now, and the 

re~ord will speak for itself. But I must say, I find it 

difficult to accept some of the ·things· you say, Ken, on a 

professional basis, when you, as the President of this 

institution·, were_ th.e very person -- three or four years ago ..;._ 

were the extoller praising the·· very .Freeholder·s whom you now 

take to task. When I say there is plenty of blame to· go 

around, I do: not mean the Freeholders, or yourselves. The 

State. has responsibility her~, too. 

As a member of _the· Appropriations Committee, I have 

been attempting to·. fight to get more do1lars . for co~uni ty 

·colleges, · which have been treated 1 ike · stepchildren. 

Stepchildren get treated better, thank God, than the community 

colleges o-f this State. I guess you could go into any county 

in this State and find that there is some kind of political. 

influ~nce, some of it good, some of it not so good. But what I 

find very revealing in the ·Middle States report, is that 

they-- I had the impression, I came to the· conclusion, that 

there was something endemic at the institutio"n; that within the 
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institution itself, the professional staff could not get its 

act together. 

Granted, whatever these other outside forces were 

which do exist -- and this does not say that they have existed, 

or have not existed-- I am talking about the people who get 

paid to do the job at the institution. It seems to me that the 

report is very clear, to me, that planning was not a 

front-burner issue at the Passaic County Community College. 

Now, maybe I haven It read the same report· that you read. I 

don It know. I think I have. I know you are an intelligent 

person. I have always considered you to be very perceptive. 

In fact, I would like to think that I had something to do with 

you being here. 

MR. WRIGHT: You did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN.PASCRELL: But now we come to the point 

of, well, fish or cut bait, in looking at the institution and 

where it stands . I am very concerned. You know, in a show 

cause order, the institution-has so much time to respond to t:q.e 

criticisms that are laid out in the Middle States report. The 

criticisms ·are one thinc;r; the deficiencies are one thing. What 

is ·very, very important to me is that the ·Middle States report 
• • 0 

feels. that we do not have the wherewithal at this institution. 

to c-orrect the. problem. That is what I---· When I saw this; I 

said, "There is a good chance" -- and remember, this was back 

in March, mind you -- "that this institution may not open in 

September." . 

Now, you might consider ·that to be hyperbole -- an 

exaggeration of sorts~ Did I overreact? You tell me. 

MR. WRIGHT: .Well, I certainly . think there is no 

chance that the institution, nor was there ever a chance that 

the institution would not operate would not open in 

September. Middle States is a long, deliberative process. It 

is a constructive process. They tell us what needs to be 

corrected, and they believe fully that we are on our way. 
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In fact, we have been given some indications in that 

regard; that things are moving in a very positive direction. I 

certainly want you to continue in your remarks--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. 

MR. WRIGHT: --but the most significant thing you 

said is about inferring from the report -- and I think we ought 

to go over that in some detail -- whether it is endemic to the 

staff. I think this staff is very able. If we simply get out 

of their way, the staff at this College will correct whatever 

problems need to be corrected, and I refer specifically to the 

report. Several passages are--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you firmly believe that the 

reason why you have not bee~ able ·to plan and implement the 

plan at this institution is because of Freeholder 

interference? Do you really believe that? 

MR. WRIGHT: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You don•t believe that? 

MR. WRIGHT: No .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. Why haven•t we?· 

MR .. WRIGHT: It ·has been a complex set of issues; the 

confluence of several streams c.oming -together I If you look at 

the· botto~ of page 7, ·you will find referen~·e Middle States 

made to ~hat· I think is the heart. ·of the issue. The st·aff 

prepared the beginning skeletal- outline and by .. beginning .. 

and .. skeletal.. do not be misled-- It was. a 13-page document, 

which was submitte~ to the Board of Trustees with my _ 

recommendation after· the staff prepared it iri the fall of 1986. 

At the bottom of page 7, you will notice: .. The long, 

unacceptable delay_ by the Board of Trustees in addressing the 

issue of planning has forced the College to implement, 

informally and unofficially, goals submitted to the Board of 

Trustees three years ago. A tremendous amount of energy and 

time has been expend:ed writing or responding to acrimonious, 

invective, intimidating, and somewhat threatening 
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correspondence. This type of correspondence has only served to 
exacerbate the College's planning problems, and has created a 
climate whereby serious policy issues survive only after a 
horrendous verbal assault, if indeed they survive at all." 

Let me tell you something about Middle States: Middle 
States couches its terms in very calm, measured ways. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I served on Middle States; I 
know. 

MR. WRIGHT: This is inflammatory language. You never 
see language this powerful written in a Middle States 
document. I have been on over 50 Middle States teams I anQ. I 
have never seen anything written that strongly in all my life, 
and I think that is worth--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 
from that? 

And what is your conclusion 

·. MR. WRIGHT: My conclusion is that they are saying 
that is the serious issue. So the staff-~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Are you saying, therefore-­
Then your . answer to . my quest ion . is, no I it wasn' t the ·Board of 
Freeholders. It w~s the Board of Trustees--

MR. WRIGHT: With respect to planning~-
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: ·--which. had the primaFY. 

respori~{bility for us not implementing our plans. 
MR. WRIGHT: If you want the irrunediate · cause. But 

let's remember I M~ddle States is not s?mething · that comes in 
today and takes a snapshot ·and says you are a good institution 
or a bad institution. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL:. Right I 

MR. WRIGHT: Middlle States is a process by which 
institutions continuously review how. they are doing I and what 
they want to know is what P.rocess is in place. They are not 
even saying I by· the way I that. we haven't planned. We have 

plans at this College. That is badly misunderstood. What they 
are saying is that the process is not good; how we got to this 

point is~not good~ 
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What happened here is·, the staff-- I am really 

responding to your comment about whether it is endemic to the 

institution. The staff did its job. The staff prepared a very 

comprehensive set of goals and objectives. In fact, they were 

too ambitious to be met, and they knew that at the time because 

one of the things they wanted back was feedback on the 

question: What is really doable here? And the report refers 

to that later. It comes back to the· point where these goals, 

which were forced to be applied unofficially, because they 

didn · t have the proper approval-- The report comes back to 

that and says they are too ambitious, and th~t we don· t have 

the resources to accomplish all of those things. 

We agree with that, and I think members of the staff 

would agree with that. They have been about adjusting that in 

the meanwhile. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: On the question of 

interference, are you telling us here today ·that the main 

. problem ·at this institution, and. the main reason why it has a 
show cause order looking at it.;...- I mean, we .are· not simply 

talk_ing about ·problems of accreditation, ar;e we, K~n? 

MR. WRIGHT: No, we're not. We have been talking 

about things beyond accreditation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. PASCRELL: We are talking about . a· ·show 

cause order, which is. -a very serious. business here, isn · t it? 

What does .. show cause" mean? 

MR. WRIGHT: ... Show cause" means that the institution 

has not been sufficiently responsive to Middle States, and they 

want to see some·action. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So you haven't responded to the 

deficiencies that existed in the Middle States report? 

MR. WRIGHT: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: That is.pretty serious. 

MR. WRIGHT: That's serious. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Now, how much time does the 

institution have to prove to Middle States that it can 

circumvent these problems, these influences, so to speak, that 

have been the main reason for it not getting accredited? 

MR. WRIGHT: We have unt i 1 October 1 to submit the 

report. Now, that does not mean that we have unt i 1 October 1 

to so 1 ve all of the things that need to be done. As I have 

said repeatedly, and I will continue to stay on this point, 

this isn't a process which ends October 1, or ever. It goes on 

and on and on, and there will always be new issues to raise. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. Do you think the 

problems that impede the progress of implementation will be 

removed by October 1? 

MR. WRIGHT: I am very concerned· about that .. I do not· 

know. What I do know is that the staff knows what needs to be 

done. In fact, commencing a year· ago, in June of 1989, a· lot 

of things were set into pla~e, and much. progress has. already 

been recorqed. The Middle States team, when they visited; 
. . 

chose pot to examine those quest~ons, and I think properly so 

from their perspective, because it looked like a very recent 

flurry of activity .. Now it looks like a whole year of a l9t_of 

work. . There wil1 be another six months wo.rth of work piled on 

. to that by the time the_ report .goes. I am highly confident 

that Middle States will see that the staff is doing its.job . . ~ . . 

1986? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Did the impediments exist in 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Did they 

MR. WRIGHT: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: In 1988? 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: In 1989? 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you have correspondence from 

your desk to the Chancellor, or anyone, discussing these 

impediments? 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, I do. I think I have some 

correspondence. I specifically had a number of conversations 

talking about the trustee appointment process. The Chancellor 

is aware of my concern. In fact, he expressed, in an oral 

conversation, that the -- and I am sure ·he would share it -­

point of trustee appointments is something -that is of grave 

significance, and something that the Board of Higher Education 

pays a lot of attention to. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Let me be more specific: Do 

you have correspondence ·from 1986 and 1987 to the Chancellor, 

or to the Department of Higher Education,. highlighting and 

outlining the impediments as ~o why· you and your staff could 

not implement plans at the_corn:rnunity College? 

MR. WRIGHT: No. I did not address anything on the 

specif~c question ·of not being ~ble to plan. · I addressed the 

s,Pecific question of :the app~intment proce~s, ·the makeup of the 

Board, the relationship between the Boat;d and the Board of 

Chosen Freeholders. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: If so~ebody dropped out of the 

sky into this institution and walked ~nto this room and. read 

the Middle States report, I would thin}{ that tney would say, ·. .. . 

after hearing your testimony, objectively, that there is much 

to be said for impediments to implementation after there is 

goal setting and objective·s and whether we can do this or not. 

There is much to be said for what stands in the way of getting 

the job done. 

But, we have not dropped out of the sky, and we have 

l;>een here for the last five years. I, personafly, find it 

difficult -- there is a tremendous amount of difficulty -­

be.ing a res.ident of this county all of my life, to find 

anything in the record that I have looked at that indicates 
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your dissatisfaction with the powers that be and any specific 

impediments. It seems to me that you became, you know, 

responsive-- We are back and forth here. This is not going to 

be one-sided, I can assure you. 

It seems to me that you are a born-again person since 

the accreditation report came through and you discovered all of 

these things that are wrong. Where were you in 1986, '87, and 

'88, when this institution had those same impediments? Do you 
think that is a legitimate question? 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. Go ahead and answer it. 

MR. WRIGHT: Where was I? Let me answer that in two 

ways: First, in 1986 .arid 1987 and ~988, I was --- as I. ·at· that 

time judged to· be the best course of action to follow 

working within the system trying to bring about change.. I did 

not judge that to be up-front and confronting. 

On the other hand, . when it does get to that point 

where you think ·you ought to come out and confront-~ I did 

that in 1977, if you want to go back a ways. At that timet I 

held a press conference, in which l declared. that ·there were 

improper; attempts on the· part-of the Freeholder Board .to get ·me 

to hire somebody who didn't go through the proper hir.ing 

process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I remember that in 1977. I 

don't remember anything .like that, anything c~early .like that, 

or anything nearly like that in 1986, 1987-, 1988, or 1989, but 

I will stand corrected.if there were things. 

MR. WRIGHT: That is always the question, isn · t it? 

When do you cross over that line where that dramatic public 

action is necessary, and when do you stop on this side of the 

line and continue working quietly and persistently towards the 

improvement of the process? 

ASSEMBLYMAN, PASCRELL: Well, I will conclude in this 

thing-- Let me tell you what I think. This will probably be 
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the last public situation you and I will be in. ·I don It look 

at it as confrontational, but I-- Let me tell you something: 

I put a lot of sweat into this school, and I am not going to 

see it go down the tubes for you or anybody else. 

MR. WRIGHT: No more than I have, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. Now, in 1985 and 1986, 

you spent a lot of time -- you, personally, and excuse me for 

pointing -- in attempt in9 to convince this county that we 

needed another major campus up-county. What shocked me through 

that whole process was not what you believed, but how you 

pursued it when you were told in 1986, I 87, '88, I 89, and, 

indeed, in 1990, br th~ Chancellor of Higher Education of the 

State-of New Jersey that there ~a~ no way in hell that· we could. 

build a major campus up-county, because we just couldn't afford 

to do that. 

If yo~ would have spent more time minding the store 

.here, instead of dealing. with a political -hot potato, maybe we 

wouldn't be here today. Of cou'rse, we are no·t dealing · ·in 

maybes~ Ken; we are dealing with what is. You probably ~ave 

some second thoughts about that_yourself._. 

MR. WRIGHT: Well, you may be rfght a~out thC3.t, Mr. 

Chairman. Lots of people wi 1.1 ·talk about that fore~er. We 

still don't serve the up-county area,· and it isn't-­

ASSEMBLYMAN PAS"CRELL: I agree. 

· MR. WRIGHT:. --quite so simple as you s.uggest. I did 

not come out of the chute suggesting we shquld have an 

up-county campus. In fact, I presented five al terriatives to 

the Board as to how we could serve our miss ion better than we 

were. To this day, we serve one-tenth of 1% of the population 

in the up-county area. We serve close to 2% in the down-county 

area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: We are doing a poor j"ob serving 

up-county residents. There is no question about that. But 

your alternative-- Although you say you presented five,. your 
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alternative was to build a major campus and have a separate, 
unequal situation exist, which we did not want to exist in this 
county. 

MR. WRIGHT: Oh, no, no, not at all. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: We did not want it to exist in 

this county. 

MR. WRIGHT: Certainly that is one reasonable 
objective, and is one of those that I pursued. But it was not 
the only alternative that I discussed, and never-- In fact, in 
rny proposal, there were some very strong measures---

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Why did you-~· 
MR. WRIGHT: --as to how to keep them from being 

separate and unequal. That certain1y was not anything that I 
would support. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I don • t believe you would want 
it to be separate and unequal, but--

MR. WRIGHT: But this is-- The point, M_r. Chairman, 

· ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: The point is not the up-county 
campus. The point is. what you did wi.th your time, at a ti~e 

. . 
when there should have been concentration on planning. I mean, 

A . 

t~is Middle States report is replete with-- The criticisms are 
a-lmost 1 ike deja vu. You ·read two pages, and then you think 
you read that one page before. I mean, it is specific things, 
but it is almost like a duplication of things. 

It is a pretty serious business here, and I· know you 
are a very serious person. I suggest that maybe we should hot 
have been into the political sphere as much as you were, and 
maybe you should. have.tended to the store. Maybe I'm wrong. 

MR. WRIGHT: That is a reasonable inference to draw. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. Mr. Mecca? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA : Mr . Wright . --. Dr . wi: i gh t -- I I m 

sure there is enough blame to go around to all parties. 
MR. WRIGHT: No, it's Mr. Wright. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Mr.? Okay. There is enough blame 

to go around to all individuals. I am thinking back to-- Last 

year I heard a speech by Governor Kean in Washington. In this 

speech he incorporated a letter to the next Governor, and he 

started out by saying, .. Dear Jim.. -- assuming it might be 

Courter or Florio. He went on to describe what would be the 

goals of the next Governor for the State. 

I was hoping to hear today that we might look a little 

ahead prospectively, knowing that the probl~ms had been hashed 

and rehashed in the press, with you, with Middle States, and 

perhaps you could give us a little bit of a vision, as an 

outgoing President, as to what the next President of this 

College will have to deal with, an~ what ditection he might go 

in in bringing this back onto .. its feet and· guaranteeing that 

every September from here on in, this place will open. 

MR. WRIGHT:. I think that was· well put, and it is what 

I think our focus should be: What should be forthcoming in the 

future?. ·In . fact, I can give you reams .of recomrnendat ions·. . I 

have here before me a document which, again, was created by 

staff -- our. staff has done a terrific job in this county --
. . 

.. Planning Activities Over the Next Several Months and· the Nex:t 

Yea·r for Passaic. County Community College... Staff will be 

recommending to the. Board of ·Trustees, on ·June 25, a set of 

one-year g~als that are very well-thought-out. I have seen 

·where_ they stand at this point, and while they are not quite 

finished, they are getting pretty close, and there is a 

springing out of· planning activities that have been g.oing on 

for quite a while. 

Th~ pri~ary concern confronting the College is space. 

It .is such an imposition that we don't have a child care 

center; we don't have · a student lounge; we have .. i~adequate 

office space; we do not have enough .classroom space; we are 

turning students away; and we are turning revenue away. And 

that is costing taxpayers money. That is the most serious 
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problem confronting the College, but not by any means the ~ost 

important academic question. Bricks and mortar is where it 

ought to start, as a minimum sort of thing; beyond that, the 

notion of programs. We need to continue to develop the 

technology programs -- engineering science ~- which has been 

held up for reasons having nothing to do with the quality of 

the program. That is another issue that we need to deal with. 

We have laser fiber-optics on the drawing board we are 

considering, but which we have not fully decided on yet. The 

computer integrated manufacturing program has gotten underway 

and is doing quite a good job. We are doing a good job of 

transferring students out of those programs on to t~e four-year 

colleges. 

We need to continue to develop.our health professions 

technologies, which are outstanding, but we have to always be 
. . 

on our·. guard there. · Eternal- vigilance is something yo~ always 

need in these kinds of t~ings. We need to develop our 

fu-ll-time f.acul ty. We are too dependent on part .... time facul.ty 

in many· areas. ·For example, Engl. ish as a . second. language, 

which is the largest single area· of the College and may, at· 

this point, enroll almost.half o.f our student bqdy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: How do you know for. sure about 

that? 

MR. WRIGHT: I think that is about right. I think it 

is about half of the student body that is enrolled in English 

as a second language, and tp.e full-time to part-time ratio is 

terrible there. Not that the part-time instructors are not 

good --- they do a fine job -- but they come to the classroom 

and teach, and they don't participate as much in the curriculum· 

decisions and committee work and other academic deliberations. 

We need to strengthen their full-time facu~t~. I am. talking 

about quantity. We need more full-time faculty. 

I coul~ give you other more specific and more detailed 

things, but those things exist. If you '*Ould real1y like to 
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see those, I think staff could put together for you a fairly 

impressive document about what the needs of this institution 

are for over the next several months and into the five-year 

period. 

In addition to that, now, this talks about a planning 

process which will continuously review all of these kinds of 

thipgs. Let me make the point that: What Middle States talks 

about is the planning process and the outcomes assessment 

process. They are not saying that planning hasn It been done, 

and they are not saying that outcomes have not been assessed. 

They are saying that we haven It done the process to involve 

everybody in the way it should so there is a continuous flow of 

data and information to all of the important decision makers. at 

the College. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you want to follow-up on 

that? 

ASSEMBLY:MAN MECCA: In followinc;r up_ on that, although 

the p1_an is clear, you · mi9ht have further advice to the· new 

President as to his relationship with the Board of Trustees and 

the Board of Chosen Freeholders. 

MR .. WRIGHT:· Well, I -have asked the Board of ';I'rustees 

and I · have asked the tenured faculty and I have asked other 

me.mbers of the staff to _consider ·the two points that· I have 

made to you about the appointment.· I think, irrespective of 

what you say about all else --. and I agree, I don't think we 

should be looking back to see what happened back . there-- It 

should be: What can we do to strengthen the institution? I 

don't see how anybody can disagree on the point of the trustee 

·appointment process and the qualification process and a·l_l .of 

those things, and I hope there is no disagreement about' the 

_need for the autonomy of the Board of Trustees. 

This Board of Trustees, as the name implies, is 

responsible for the public trust. They hold this College in 

public trust. They are the ones who should be making those 
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decisions. They should be supported, and they should be 
helped. They should not be attacked and inveighed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, Ken. We appreciate 

your time and your efforts. Hopefully, you will be available 
to the Committee after this. 

MR. WRIGHT: I certainly will, and I thank you very 
much for the opportunity to be heard. I am most anxious to 
assist in any way I can if any more information is required, 
not only after this hearing, but in the months to come. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Make sure all testimony is 
received by David Hespe. Make sure we have a copy of 
everything. 

Dr. Phi 1 ip White, Vice Chancellor, New Jersey 
Department of Higher Education, renowned scholar, friend. 
D R. P H I L I P V. · W H I T E: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. PASCRELL: . How are you thfs morning? 

DR. WHITE:- Very w~ll, thank you .. First of all; I· 
wou1d· like to introduce Ms. Valerie Van Baaren, of our staff. · 
She is the Assistant Director in our Governmental Affairs 
Office. I ~ould also like to begin by thanking Ass~mblyman . 
. Pascrell ahd the Committee. members· of the Assembly Higher Ed 
Committee for· convening this. public hearing. I think this 
indicates to the College, and to i~s students--

please? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Excuse me for one second, 

DR. WHITE: Sure. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: The mikes are too close? 

Excuse us for one second, Dr. White. (discussion about 
microphones at this point) Go ahead, please, Dr. White. 

DR. WHITE: ·Okay. If I may begin again, I have a very 
short statement I would·like to read this morning. · 

Good morning to Asssemblyman Pascrell and Assemblyman 

Mecca. I would like to thank Bill Pascrell and the other 
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members of the Assembly Higher Ed Committee for assembling the 
public hearing. I think this indicates a true and deep 
commitment to the Passaic County Community College and its 
students. Chancellor Hollander regrets that he is unable to be 
here today. He had a Student Assistance Board meeting in 
Princeton this morning. 

Today, Passaic County Community Co !lege is operating 
in difficult times. The College is under a show cause order 
from the Middle States Association, .the regional accrediting 
agency. The College must show cause, by October 1, 1990, why 
its accreditation should not be removed. This action means 
that the College•s peers in higher education perceive that tfie 
College is no longer meeting the Middle States standards of 
excellence in the . primary areas of planning, outcomes 
assessment, and governance. 

Ordinarily, the Board of Higher Education accepts 
Middle States aecreditation of an institution as sufficient for 
continuance of institutional licensure· and approval. In the 
event that serious problems resulting i.ri a show cause order: are 
identified · during . the Middle States review proces~, the 
Chancellor ·may: 

1) Contact the President immediately to determine how 
. . . 

the institut~on will address the Middle States c6ncerns; 
2) · Reconunend further assessment or a full 1 icensure 

visit by Department of Higher Education consultant~;. and/or 
3) Bring· the iss~es before the Board of Higher 

Education for discussion and action if the institution does not 
address the concerns of Middle States. 

If an institution loses its accreditation, then the 
Board of Higher Education must consider if the institution 
should retain ·its licensure to op~rate within· the State. 
Therefore, a show .cause order ·is a very serious concern to the 
Board of Higher Education. 
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The viability of this College is of vital importance 

to the citizens of Passaic County and especially to its urban 

constituents. I believe that Passaic County Community College 

has a strong faculty cornmi tted to providing the best education 

possible to its students. The student body is highly motivated 

for higher education. There is a critical need for the College 

to continue to offer quality education and degree programs and 

to meet the needs of students in Passaic County. 

The time for responding to Middle States concerns is 

also a time for renewal of a strong leadership team tha:t can 

make critical decisions and generate the fiscal and other 

resources the College needs to recover and thrive. At this 

time, the most important step that the Board of Trustees and 

the College can take to respond to Middle State~ and strengthen 

the institution, is to secure a strong leader. 

Strong presidential leadership will require an· 

individual who will work effectively with . the trustees and 

.county leaders. Th.is· individual must be capable of setting a · 

clear and concise agenda for the institution and moving quickiy 

on the immediate issues facing the College. This will include 

recognizing that at this moment. t.he institution cannot be all 

things to all peopl~ .. In light of the Middle ~tates·concerns, 

the focus must be on addressing the issues of the urban campus 

and, through collaboration and the assistance of others, 

inc.luding other county colleges, implement innovative methods 

for serving ·up-county residents. 

Under · these circumstances, with the school under a 

show cause order and without a permanent President, the Board 

must move ahead quickly to assure effective interim executive · 

leadership while an extensive nationwide search for a 

well-qualified President goes forward. Please be assured that 

while the institution addresses the immediate concerns 

identified by Middle States, the Department of Higher Education 

will cooperate fully with Middle States and the College in 
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order to help preserve the institution·s accreditation and 

licensure. 
That is the end of my statement. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, Dr. White. Can I 

assume -- never assume anything-- Can I assume from what you 
are saying that the Department of Higher Education wants this 
institutioni as it is known, the Passaic County Community 
College, to continue to survive and grow? 

DR. WHITE: Absolutely. That is our first priority. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So there is no agenda-- Let me 

be very specific here, very clear. There is nothing in the 
agenda, either on the table or off the table at the Department, 
which would move this institution either toward losing its 
identity or losing ~- or being absorbed by another institution? 

DR. WHITE: No, there is not. What we are concerned 
with right now, is that Passaic maintain its accreditation. and· 
licensure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So, we wan~ to maintain thi.s 
Passaic County Community College as it is ·known to us today? 

DR. WHITE: As it is known today. That is.co~r~ct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I ask you that question because 

there has be_en much speculat"ion as to what· is on· ~he agenda at 
the Departme~t·. I have asked that question to the Chancellor, 
and· I ·wante.d to ·ask that question. of ·you publicly, because 
obviously it is a con~etn to us in the county -- to all of us. 

DR. WHITE: Absolutely. I· understand that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: The Middle States report" is a 

little bit different than the report which responded to Hudson 
County Community College, is it not? 

DR. WHITE: That's right, it is. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Could you just very briefly 

tell us what the difference is? 
DR. WHITE: Well, in Hudson County, the principal 

concern was a concern that the institution had been adrift 
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since 1988 because it had 

leadership during that time. 

had no permanent and effective 

Since 1988, I believe there have 

been either two or three interim Presidents at Hudson County, 

and they were unable to project a vision of the College and to 

enable the College to respond effectively to Middle States· 

.concerns. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 

down to some nuts and bolts. 

up to its . responsibilities 

institution? 

DR. WHITE: Yes, I do. 

Let me ask you-- Let's get 

Do you think the State has lived 

and its obligations to this 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do . you know that of the $17 

million bond issue· in 1974, the first bond. issue listed only a· 

$9 million or $10 miltion expenditure on the part of the State 

in the· building of this institution and connecting it with the 

· old Telephone Building? You are aware of that, are you not? 

DR .. WHITE: No, I was not aware of that . · 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: This institution has probably 

cost the State les~ money than any other institution of higher 

learning in the State of New Jersey. I would recommend that 

you take ba.ck. to the Chancellor,· and ·I would recommend that y.ou 

take back to the Departme~t of Higher Education, ·a facility 

·study as to what the· needs of the institution are. When I see 

these large suburban campuses being bui 1 t through~ut t~e State 

of New Jersey, and how. much of. the taxpayers • money. is being 

spent, . and when I see what 1 i ttle old Passaic County Cominuni t.y 

College has, indeed, spent since 1974, starting ·out in an old 

Telephone Building here and then expanding from that point on, 

I wonder if one could-- not only myself, but others besides me 

-- ·very reasonably conclude that we are not playing on a level 

field here. 

DR. WHITE: I suppose one could, given the facts. as 

you have laid them out. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Well, I want to know if they 
are the facts. You know, this is how I perceive the facts. 

DR. WHITE: Well, I think that in many instances, 
certainly in a neighboring community college that I could name, 
the taxing capacity for that county is higher than it may be 
for Passaic County. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. 
DR. WHITE: And that the residents are more easily 

able to -- you know, build a large, as you put it, munificent 
suburban campus. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yeah, a Taj Mahal. Let's get 
even a little bit more specific: If this is primarily a State 
institution --. you heard. the .President. define it, cite chapter 
and . verse then it would seem to me that the primary 
responsibility is with the State of New Jersey, to see--

DR. WHITE: See, that is where I would disagree with 
the Pre$ident. I don't see the county colleges--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: What have 'I misinterpreted·? 
DR. WHITE: No, I don't see the county colleges as 

being primarily State institutions .. Certainl~. if they were 
· pr imar ~ lr . St~te institutions, the State would have · a lqt more· 
direct influence on the governance ot' the institut_ioris. The¥ 
would have structures that would be ve~y similar to the State 
colleges. · 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you think the students at 
this College are being served by the College? .. 

DR. WHITE: Well, I think the students of the College 
have been served by the College. I think that certainly should 
the show cause order go forward and the College lose its 
accreditation, the students would not be well served at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: How do you respond to the 
President's assessment that there ii not -- that because-- He 
says we are "space poor." Those were his words, right? 
Lacking space, we have not been able to develop programs that 
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meet the needs of our students. How do you respond to that, 

as~- I don't consider you a bureaucrat. 

DR. WHITE: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You are a hands-on person, and 

I say 'that behind your back, as well as to your face. I mean 

it sincerely. 

DR. WHITE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: But, how do you respond to 

something like that? 

DR. WHITE: Well, when I looked at the enrollment 

figures in the College over the past several years, I noticed 

that enrollment has been declining -- FTE enrollment has been 

declining. I think there are certainly things that can be done 

even within the confines of having 1 imi ted space. I certainly 

think there are programs that can be . mounted that _ would . be 

· diz::ectly responsive ~o the needs of the student~ here; that 

really don't have a direct impact on spac~. 

I looked· at~, for instance, the hUmber of new programs 

that Passaic has come forward to the Department w.i th over the 

past .three or four years. · I could only find two new programs. 

I heard the President talk about laser fiber-optics 

technologies. That is a. very expensive kind of program ·to 

mount and, you know, I·would think that there might·be other 
. . 

programs that are m_ore · directly responsive to the needs of 

student"s here . whicn would not require the kind of outlay in 

resourc::es that t.hat k~nd of a program would require. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: But wouldn't you agree, Dr. 

White, that maybe it is because of a tunqel vision on the 

Department's part -- and I say "maybe" --· as to how you respond 

to what is, for the greater part, an urban student body? We 

are not talking about---

. First of all I I looked at the FTE the full-time 

equivalent student numbers, and they seem to be going back up 

again, unless I am looking at different numbers than you are 

looking at. 
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DR. WHITE: Yeah. According to the f igu:t:"es I have, 

the FTE declined from '85 through '88-~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. 

DR. WHITE: --and then there was an upturn between '88 

and '89. You are correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: One of the things we don't want 

to get involved in, or get trapped in, is thinking that because 

we have an urban population primarily at any institution, that 

therefore these are a set of curriculum, or courses, or 

programs, and, you know, we do not have the high expectations, 

sometimes. You are absolutely right, we do have -- let me use 

your words; they were better than mine -- an excellent student 

l?ody--

DR. WHITE: Yes, you do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: --the average age of which is 

between 27 and 29. 

· MR.· WRIGHT: (speaking from· audience) It has been 

decliriing lately. It has gone ~rom 2~ to 25.in the last couple. 

of years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Now it's 25? 

.MR. WRIGHT: . · Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: ·I stand corre·cted. So,. it is 

gett·ing younge.r, ~ut the point is still there t~at we have an 

older student population, so the needs are very different·. The 

mission of the Community College is very different than the 

mission of Princeton University. 

DR. WHITE: Absolutely. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: But on the same hand, both 

Princeton and Passaic County Community College, both of which 

get State money -- taxpayers' mqney -- have an obligation .to 

the community, but the community obligation is stronger with 

the. Community College. 

Let's talk about that for a second: Has this College, 

in your estimation, met its responsibilities~ to both Paterson 

and Passaic County as a community?· 
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DR. WHITE: Well, I think the College could probably 

be doing a lot more. I am bothered by the fact that until this 

past year we did see a long-term trend in decline in 

enrollment. That indicates to me that the student body -- the 

potential students who would go to Passaic County Community 

College -- certainly did not perceive that it offered all of 

the educational experiences that they felt they needed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: As Chairman of the Higher 

Education Committee-- In the Assembly Higher Education 

Committee, the first thing we did, both in January and in 

February, was to meet with all of the major organizations' 

representatives that have anything to do with higher educa~ion 

in the State of New Jersey -- community colleg.es to the private 

colleges. Few received a·dime, ~hich is everybody. You carne 

before our Committee; the unions did; the student 

represen.tat i ve·s did -- we think very strongly about that -- to 

hear what people had to say. · 

U~(ortunat.ely, students are not. in .session· now,· so who 

speaks for. the ·students? I certainly don It I and you. certainly 

don't, and President Wright certainly doe~n't. But~ ~long that 

same trail, I really believe th~t if you·get State rn9ney, you 

have a prima~y obligation, be you a private or public 

institution, to ~duc~tion in general and to the elernen~ary 

schools of this State in particular. In fact, I have gone so 

. far as to say that I would hold up State money to Princeton 

Upivers~ty, or to Passaic County Cqmmunity College,· if it did.· 

not involve itself in the elementary, pre K to eighth grade, in 

structural curriculum, organizational resources, personnel 

if they Q.id not, because one of the complaints we get from all 

o·f these institutions is that· they have to spend from 20% to 

40% of the resources on remediation. 

DR. WHITE: On basic skills, that is ·correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. PASCRELL: So, we are throwing good money 

after bad. Do you think this institution could do much. more 
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than it is doing right now in that regard? Does it have the 
capacity? Does it have the resources? Do you care that it 
does? 

DR. WHITE: Well, certainly I care that it does. I 
think the primary task before the institution right now is to 
respond to Middle States. I certainly think--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: What do you think our chances 
are? 

DR. WHITE: I beg your pardon? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: What do you think our chances 

of doing that are? 
DR. WHITE: Well, it depends if the Board moves 

quickly-to identify effective int~rim leadership. I think that 
once that is done, and once that leadership begins to exhibit 
some movement toward answering the concerns of Middle States, I 

- . 
think MiQ.dle States might very.well provide an extension beyond 
the October 1, 1990 de.adl ine. I am. not tal~ing . for Middle 

·· State.s! but this is what· I assume t.hey .wo~ld be willing to do. 
But I think that what is absolutely incumbent on the 

.. 
Board to do now, what the pr ima:ry task, numero·. uno, is, is to 
move forward to identify an· interim President whC? ·can begin to 
put into pla.ce the kinds of processes and do . the. kinds of 
planning and outcomes assessment that' Middle States has 
criticized the College for lacking. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Will you assist the College in 
finding a President? 

DR. WHITE: We will do whatever we can to try to 
assist the College in identifying an interim leader. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you. Assemblyman Mecca? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: I have no questions, thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, Dr. White. We 

reserve the right to call you back; · also· to call on the 
Chancellor. 
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DR. WHITE: All right. Thank you very much for the 

opportunity to testify. I will make copies of my statement 

available to the staff la,ter on this afternoon. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you also, Ms. Van 

Baaren. We appreciate your time and your efforts. And you 

will get copies of that to us. 

Norman Robertson, Freeholder Board liaison, I think, 

right? 

F R E E H 0 L D E R 
That is correct. 

NORMAN M. R 0 B E R T S 0 N: 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I would ask that from here on, 

for th~ rest of the testimony, tha_t you be as precise and 

concise as possible. ·Thank you. Good morning. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Good morning, ·Mr. Chairman, 

Assemblyman. Let me first say that I do not have a written 

transcript of ~y testimony, but. I will try t·o keep my· 

presentation short and well-constructed so that it can be 
-. 

-followed. Let· me .again stress the point that I ~m the 

Freeholder liaison to the Board of Trustees of the Pas.sai.c 

·-county Conununity Col1ege. I,_- too,_ appreciate the fact _that 

this hearing has been called, because the more exposure we can 

give to- a remedial· process here at the College, I think the 

better. 

First, . let me stress one thing that I' think the 

Chairman· understands from some of the things I have heard this 

morning, and . that i's wh-at actually has. threatened 

accreditation. I don•t ·say this for the purpose of affixing 

blame; rath~r, I say this for the purpose of trying to focus in 

on what the real I inunediate threat to the College is. · That 

threat can be seen in those docll.Inents that have been put 

forward by the Middle States Association. Specifically I am 
'- ' 

talking about the small team report I a team that was. made up of 

several professionals from around the nation who have nothing 

at all to do -with the local situation so as to inject as much 
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objectivity as possible, and the actual action letter from the 

Commission on Higher Education of the Middle States 

Association. In those two documents we can see what the threat • 
is and what they are discussing in terms of accreditation. 

You have . both of those documents, ! assume, available 

to you -- perhaps they have already been given to you -- so if 

I quote from them I understand you can always place your own 

context on them and determine for yourselves whether or not it 

is quoted in context. 

As I look at the small team report, and as I looked at 

it when I first heard it in verbal form back in October of 

1989-- Several things struck me as I took a look at it. First 

of all, it should be noted that the team was assembled in the 

first place in . response to the Association Is . ''v.ery serious 

concerns about planning and outcomes assessment at Passaic 

County Community College." T~at is why ·they were sent .in the 

first place, so it was really nothing new when the small ~earn 

·visit was mad~ in. Oc~ober of 1989 ... ~;hey used ·as · their 

guidelines, as .Middle States does, ·the "Characteristics of 

Excellence in Higher Educat.ion, " which is . a book wh~ch is 

considered a bible of sorts, o~ at least ·sets forth the· 

standards of' accreditation for _institutions by ·the Middle 

Sta~e~ Assoc1ation. 

They made several observations after making -- I am 

talkin9 about the small team's report, at this point .-­

reference to the "-charac_teristics of Excel_len!=e" concerning 

mission, goals, and objectives. They noted that after a 1984 

revision of a mission statement by the College itself -- and I 

am reading directly_ now -- "The College specified· a set of 

·goals and objectives that it identified as charting the course 

of the College for the next five years. Adopted in 1986 by the 

Col.lege Is Academic Counci 1, these were submitted to the Board. 

of Trustees by the College President. No action was taken by 

the Board of Trustees until September 25, 1989." That was less 
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than 30 days before the Middle States Association small team 

visit, so I can certainly understand why they would have 

considered that a flurry of activity. 

In their other observations, the small team also went 

on to say: ''The Passaic County Community College has not 

addressed the directive to develop and implement a 

comprehensive program of outcome measures . " One of the 

important things to take note of there, is the fact that they 

have not addressed a former directive, so this is not something 

that simply popped up in the last 12 months. 

Later on -- and I might say that this is something 

that has been of great concern to me -- from their discussion 

of va.rious administrators and members of the· Board of Trustees, 

and so forth, they. indicated: "It is clear that a more 

pro-active, decisive, harmonious, and visionary leadership 

wo~ld have greatly assisted the College to recognize the need 

for planning and to embrace an institutional planning process 

. long.· before this critical· juncture in the life ~of the 

College." That is important for . its substance, and also for 

the observation that it was, in fact, a critical juncture in 

the College. 

The· President earlier quoted a portion of the report.·, 

but the senten~e· immediately. following the porti~n that he 

quoted states: "The '·feverish' activity on the part of the 

. Board between July and October 1989 is in marked contrast to 

the unresponsiveness of the Boar9, over a _five-year perio~ to 

the.plannfng concerns of the Middle States Association." 

After making all of those observations and liberally 

quoting from "Characteristics of Education" excuse me, 

"Characteristics of Excellence" and making specific 

recommendations, they then sent their report to the Commission 

on-Higher Education. Now, the Commission on Higher Education,. 

as I understand the process, had to choose from a number of 

alternatives in terms of what action it would next take. The 
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most serious of those alternatives would be to issue an action 
letter requiring the College to show cause why accreditation 
should not be suspended. That, in fact, is the course they 
chose, the most serious of the courses available to them. 

In doing so, they made one statement which I think is 
very important. On page 3, in sort of conclusionary language, 
they say: .. There has been no comprehensive approach to 
planning. Planning has not involved the various constituencies 
of the College. The College has done little to develop and 
implement a coordinated, comprehensive program of outcqme 
measures. Indeed, until recently, little action has been taken 
on the proposed revision of the College's stated goals. .Based 
.on the team' s finding, the Commission views the College as 
having failed to respond. satisfactorily to the Comrnis·sion · s 
longstanding concerns communicated in the past to the 
College.".· Once again, the reference to the fact that this has 
been an issue that has been around this insti:tution for quite 

.some time. 
That really is wha.t is immediately threatening the 

~ccreditation of this institution. Several things were done.by 
the Freeholders, or observed by the Freeholders, in the wake of 
this small team visit. I should point out that· I. f.irst took 
office in January of 1989, and as Chairman of the Education 
Committee ;,f the Freeholders, acted as 1 iai·son .to the Board · o.f 

Trust~es ·here. Between the period of January 1989 and 
. . . 

appro~imately September go in~ into October of 1.989, I had the 
oppor~unity to observe the then Board of Trustees in action -~ 
those are two words, "in action" -- just to clarify the record. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Let the recorq be clarified. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Okay. But I had an opportunity 

to observe the Board_ as it went thrciugh its processes, and sat 
very. quietly throughout that entire nine- or ten-month period. 
When the sma 11 team visited the Co liege, they asked to meet 
with me, and behind closed doors we did sit down. They asked 
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me very frankly what I thought of the long-range planning at 

the College, especially as to the Board of Trustees. I gave 

them my frank opinion, which I have shared with the Board of 

Trustees since then, and it has been part of the public 

record. I told them at that point that it was my view that the 

then constituted Board of Trustees was incapable of effective 

long-range planning. 

At that point, the meeting became very friendly and 

open. Evidently, they seemed to feel the same way, and that 

seems to be reflected in their report here. 

At the conclusion of their visit in October, they gave 

a verbal report to the College. I attended that verbal report, 

and it followed very closely-- When I compared my notes to the 

actual· text, it followed very closely the final written 

report. It may, in fact, have been a first draft. When I 

heard that, it became very ··clear to me· that the College was· 

imperiled; that a lot of the things that we were hearing about 

the Middle ~tates p~ocess and how thing$ cotild go very 
smoothly, and we. just have to assure them on a certain number 

of poin_ts-- I· felt at that point that we had to take things 

very seriously. 

One of the things that I supported at that time was 

the replacement .of at least f~ve of the Trustees ·whose . terms 

had just then expired. In October of 1989 the ter~s expired, 

and the Board of Chosen Freeholders had an opportunity -- a 

narrow window of opportunity -- between t~e expiration of those 

terms and the Middle States report, verbal report, and the 

November reorganization of the Board of Trustees, to make 

changes., if changes were possible or desirable. It was largely 

felt throughout the Board --- and I certainly felt this way 

that changes needed to be made. 

So, where we had the opportunity to replace five of 

the members of the Board of Trustees -- five of the eight 

appointed by the Freeholders we did so at that time., and 
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tried to put together what we felt was a representative 
sampling of a variety of geographic and ethnic backgrounds, 
including the Board's first -- not necessarily first, but first 
currently Hispanic representative, an attorney who had 
outstanding credentials from here in Paterson. 

So, we were able to make those changes. The meeting 
of the Board immediately following the reorganization-­
Actually, at the reorganization meeting, I asked to speak to 
the Board, and at that point I finally broke my silence and 
shared with them the observation that I had made to the Middle 
States Association and.my deep concern-- this was not to just 
an individual Board member, but this was to the entire Board --­
that somethi~g had to be done very seriously to address 
themselves to the points, paragraph by paragraph, that were 

·raised in the Middle States small team report. This was before 
the actual show cause letter was issued in M~rch of 1990. 

So, we made those changes as we could. We asked them 
to please set out on a course and · ~hey, - also, wer:.e very 
interested in setting out on a course· to put together a ret~eat 
in. order t·o do so, and began to discuss the specifics of. a lot 
of what had been contained in the small . team report. That is 
the process that was ongoing when, in March of 1990, the Middle 
States Associatio-n C"ommis_sion on Higher Education .issued its 
show cause order~ 

Two things were i~portant about that: Number one was 
the order itself, which was issued. in March, w.hich, in fact, 
took, as I said, the most serious of the options available to 
them, and secondly, the Commissioner of Higher Education -­
exGuse me, not the Commissioner, the Chancellor of Higher. 
Education -- al~o had had meetings with the President of this 
institution, and had had phone calls with members of the Board 
of Freeholders, at least one member of the Board of 
Freeholders, concerning the need for making further changes at 
the College at the top administrative post and also with the 
Board~of Trustees. 
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In reaction to what appeared to us -- by us I mean 

Freeholder Director DuHaime, who obviously will speak for 

himself-- But for myself, it appeared very clear that the 

credibility of the Board of Trustees, the President of the 

College, and the administration of the College was going to be 

a very important point in terms of addressing ourselves to the 

points made by the Middle States Association in its action 

letter. And it was at that point, and not before, that a 

request was made by the Freeholder Director for the 

resignations of some other members of the Board of Trustees who 

had been on board at the time of the small team visit, and the 

President of the institution, and it was directly in response 

to those things happening. 

While I indicate to you what the threat is about now, 

I should also· indicate what I feel it is not about. I don't 

feel the .threat is about the quality of our faculty qr t~e 

co~i tment of ou~ student body. We have _an ex9ellent faculty, 

I think·. We have a very excellent administrative staff and a 

very dedicated student body. We have people who have some real 

educational . needs here, and we have a lot of peop~e who are 

working very ha·rd to try to meet those needs. It is also not 

about a variety of hidden agendas t~at have made the 

newspapers. I ·thin~ it is important for us to set the record 

straight on some things. I.woti't go into them iri great detail 

at all, but i don't. think the Chancellor of Higher· Education 

had a hidden _agenda. when h~ suggested that we needed · further 

changes in lea~ership. I don· t think the Freeholder Director 

did either. I don't think the faculty did either, when it 

called for certain resignations. I think it do~s a disservice 

to the entire process to really try to divert attention away 

from what the real issues are. Those real issues are not set 

forth by me; they are· set forth by the Commission on Higher 

Education in the report. 
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On the question of political interference, or I 

should-- Well, it has been couched as political interference, 

but let me say political action, or Freeholder action. Let me 

first say that between the time January 1989 and September 

1989-- Again, I sat very quietly in those meetings and watched 

what went on. When I heard the report, it became very clear to 

me that potentially the life of this institution was being 

threatened by what was going on. And when the life of any 

county institution, or an institution in which the county is a 

partner, is threatened, and services to people in the county 

are threatened, everyone should understand that my view is that 

the Freeholders have not only the right, but the absolute 

respons_ibility to step forward and· express themselves on the 

issue, which is something we did. I expressed i~ privately to 

the Board of Trustees immediately after the verbal repo_rt. It 

was only made public after the Commission on Higher Education 

issued its show cause letter. 

So, it is important to draw that· distinc-tion between 

poli~ic~l interference and politicai . ~ction. I might also 

mention that during the nine· or ten months that I sat quietly 

in the back, I. can't recall any· time that any of the other 

Freeholders, unless it was something that ·I didn't know about, 

attempted to affect deci~ions that were ·being made by the Board 

of Trustees or the ongoing day-to-day ·management of the 
College, ·as such. I can only speak for tha~ period of time in 

which I was d~r~c·tly involved. I. just offer .that- to the 

Committee as an observation. 

In terms of a recommendation to this board -- to this 

panel -- let me say that I agree in some respects with some of 

the comments that were made concerning . the trustee recruitment 

process. I think that is something that can, and should be 

improved .. · One improvement that has been made was made by way 

of regulation by the Department of Higher Education in December 

of 1989, when they indicated that no trustee would be seated 
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unless that trustee had been recommended by the screening 
conuni ttee that is put into place in each of the counties. I 
think that is a sound recommendation. 

I believe that every effort has to be made on the part 
of the Freeholder Board, and anyone else, the screening 
committee certainly, to try to put together a Board that is 
representative of both the College community and the community 
as a whole, bringing into play as many talented people as 
possible; people who have experience not only in the community, 
but also in larger organizations, who will understand the 
balance sheets when they read them, and will understand 
finances when they are being presented to them. . I think that 
is very important.. That is one of the reasons :t felt it. was 
very importan~ and was a primary person in recommending. our 
first Hispanic memb~r of the Board. 

In ter~s of funding, I think some consideration should 
be given by the State of.New Jersey to improving the deg~ee to . . . . . 
which they support their own partnership in the Community 
College sphere. The County of· .Passaic is probably, if· not the 
top, at le~st am~ng the top twQ ~r thre~ counties, by vir~u~ of 
the .percentage of the county ·budg~t which _th~ county government 
·assumes. Just to give you an example of that, when the 
trustees came forward with a.budget this year, t~ey recommended 
an 18% increase in expenditur~ levels ~hat wound up translating ·. . . 

itself into a 40% increase on the local tax levy. That 
shouldn't necessarily be the case. I realize that has to do 
with funding formulas and that the more full-time equivalent _ 
students you have, the better you will make out from the State 
on funding, but some consideration should be given by the State 
toward putting money, for instance, into some sorts of 
incentive programs -- especially in the atea of urban education 
-- programs that we can use, as an institution, and that we can 

use money for. 
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On the quest ion of space, I also agree that a great 

deal of-- Well, I shouldn't-- Let me back off a little bit on 

that. Let me say that I think that space certainly is a 

problem here in Paterson. One of the problems we have had in 

the past was with City leadership in the City of Paterson and 

the acquisition of property that may have been on the private 

tax rolls, which would wind up on the public tax rolls. As a 

matter of fact, it was only last year that some consideration 

was given to the purchase -- in passing -- of a building that 

had gone on the market near the College in a good neighborhood, 

and the Mayor of the City of Paterson wrote a letter to the 

College saying that he would fight it tooth and nail, 

presumably because it· would be ·taken. off of the private tax 

rolls. I hope that. the new. City administration will be very 

open to anything of ·that nature. So, any influence that you 

might be able to exert with the new administration,. Mr. 

Chairman, would be g~eatly appreciated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: . We'll take. it up with ·them. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON·: Okay. In conclusion, let me 

point ·to a· couple of larger goals here: The Passaic County 

. Commuriify College is a very important institution to .the life 

of this county. I felt. ve~y st-rongiy ·about a merger with the 

Bergen Coun~y Communi t~ College, in p.art .because· I felt there 

was a reason the word ... community:· was in the title. It needs 

to reflect the community. It needs to serve the community. 

There are some very important long-term, long-range, broad 

goals that· we need to address. One is the failure of urban · 

education, especially in Paterson, and in Passaic,. and whatever 

we can do to become involved in that -- and I agree .with you, 

Mr. Chairman, on that score-- Whatever we can do to become 

involved.in that, we should do here at the County College. · 

I also think another broad objec_tive is to try to do a 

better job in serving the people in our up-county area. We are 

not serving them adequately. The county community college 



system throughout New Jersey is not serving them adequately. 

That does not mean that you rush out and build a $40 million 

campus. What it means is tha- you look for creative ways to 

bring a community college experience opportunity to the people 

in that area. If that means partnerships with other community 

colleges and joint ventures-- ~erhaps it does mean that, but 

it means planning for the future in a way that addresses these 

big needs. 

So, after saying that, I really look back on what was 

said by the Commission on Higher Education and by the small 

team's report, and I understand even more fully now why 

planning is so_ important. As we look back on why we are in the 

soup, I must point out one important point that I failed to 

make earlier: The· issues of esoteric. institutional long-range· 
. . 

pla~ing as an institutional process and institutional outcomes 

assessment are very important, but they are also c·auses ·that 

need to be professionally led and professionally driven. It is 

-difficult to take a ·lay Board,· even if they have had ];>road. 

experience in business or ·the community, and expect them to 

understand, in the sort o"f terms .that .are necessary·, the 

importance of thos~ esoteric educational areas. That is where 

professional leader·ship ~ames into play. That is ·one of the 

reasons why even· :though the original report by the small team · 

did not take to task the administration as much as it did the 

Board, I have ·co-ncluded, and I feel very strongly, that it 

involves professional leadership on that score as well. · That 

is a~ important point to make. 

so; plann·ing is very, very important. I think what we 

need now is a time for healing .at the College; a time for the 

institution of bold and farsighted leadership; a time for quick 

and decisive action ·on the part of the Board of Trustees, .to 

put us on a tr~ck that will create the process that will do two 

things -- the planning process that will do two things: Number 

one, satisfy the Middle States Association that we are on the 
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right track. And I must disagree, and have great concerns when 
the President says, as he did today, that the Middle States 
Association believes full); that we are on the way. I don • t 
believe that. I heard statements of that sort prior to them 
taking the most serious action they took. But we now have to 
put on track a planning process that will satisfy Middle States 
and chart a productive future for this County Community College. 

It is in that vein that I appear before you this 
morning, and I appreciate the opportunity to do so, Mr. 
Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 
Robertson. Very, very quickly, 
quest ions. You may choose not 
problem. Get back to me. 

Thank you, Freeholder 
let ~e ask you some pointed 

to answer them. That is· no 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: . I assure you I will not take 
the Fifth Amendment, in any event. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: No need to in front of this 
Committee. 

Let me ask you. this question: Would. you be opposed .to 
a. n·onpartisan ·commission or adv.isory .board -- advisory age~cy 
-- to assist the Board of Trustees? Befo:t:"e you answer that 
question, . let ·me ask· you this question. 

FEE~HOLDER ROBERTSO~: In doing what? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I'll get to that. 
FREE~OLDER ROBERTSON: Oh, okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Don't you think that t~e Board 

-of -Trustees-- Why should · I be any more confident now than I 
was when all- of this thing~- All of these bad things are 
happening down here, and al~ of these trustees don't know what 
they are doing, supposedly. Now we are going to an era 
where--- We are· in nirvana. Now, all of a sudden, we've got 
trustees who are professionally anchored· and everything is 
lovely and the rain is going to bring up all the flowers. 
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Why should I feel any more confident? The same people 

who are making the decisions as to who serves on the Board now, 

made the decisions as to who was on the Board -- except for 

yourself three or four years ago. I mean, is there a 

different process that we are attending to? Are the Board 

members being selected in a nonpartisan way, Mr. Robertson? 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: All right, now, which of those 

questions would you like me to answer first, Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Start with the last one and go 

backwards. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Okay. Are they being selected 

in a nonpartisan way? To the extent that the government in the 

County of Passaic is organized on a partisan basis, the answer 

would. have to be, ••No... · If this were a nonpartisan form of 

government, as they have, for instance, in the City of 

Paterson,· or in the _City of Clifton, you would say they are not 

being selected in a partisan way. So, if you took a look -at--
.· . 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL :· Yeah·, but Norm, r·egardless . of 

who. were the majority in the past, whether _Republicans or 

Democrats~- . Tl'lat has nothing to do with what I am. asking, 

really. Listen to what I ·am . asking: The Board members were 

always· selected, when there was a Republican majority-- Ther·e 

was always an attempt to have some kind of balance of 

partisanship, so that .there wasn • t a total imbalance on. the 

Board. That has not .been the case in the last five years~ 

·FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: I would disagree with. that, Mt. 

Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You think there has been an 

attempt in the last--

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: No, I disagree, and I think it 

;is, in some ways, naive to ass~~ that a· government that is 

organized on a partisan· basis will, unless specifically 

required to by statute,. organize its boards with. an. eye, t·oward 

providing as many from each party. Some statutes require that; 
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this statute does not require it. If that is something that 

you are--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: No, I am going back to the 

history of the Boards, though. And, while I am not naive 

enough to think-- You know, give me some credit. I am not 

naive enough to think that we can have an equal distribution of 

party majority, or have a majority. I have no problems with 

that whatsoever. But the party in power should not have 

unanimity. That I have a problem with. Do you have a problem 

with that? 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: The party in power, in this 

case, of the five trustees who were appointed most recently-­

They are not all Republicans.· 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Weli, how were they selected? 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: How were these five selected? 

ASSEMBL~ PASCRELL: Yeah. What is different in the 

process? I will go back to my original--

. FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: ·oh, there is nothing different 

in the process. 

. A~SEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So the process is . not being 

adhered to. Is that-- · I mean, does th·e President have-­

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Now you are asking a different 

question. 

ASSEMB~YMAN PASCRELL: Does the President have a 

legitimate po_int of criticism when he says that the Board of 

Freeholders forget about · whether . they are Democrat or 

Republican for two · seconds -- is adhering to the guidelines 

presented by the State on how these Board members should be 

selected? Does he have a legitimate criticism when he says 

that? 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: If he -says that· the guidelines 

are flawed, yes, he ha-s a legitimate criticism. I agree. I 

think so, in any event, because when you. take a look.. at the 

comrniss ion or the panel or the ccimrni ttee that is to be the 
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search committee for new trustees, they, in fact, are appointed 
by the Board of Freeholders. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: And in many counties, I would 

suspect, although I can It speak for many counties -- I can It 
even speak for this county prior to the last 12 months, or 18 

months-- I would suspect that in many counties that just makes 
a one-step process a two-step process. So I don't know that 
that particular process does serve that well, because you then 
have to take a look at who is being appointed to those 
committees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So, as far as you are 
concerned, looking ~o the_future--

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: But that does not mean ~- if I 

may elaborate to the point you were making before--
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Sure., go ahead·. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: That does not mean, however, 

that I feel that a· simple p~rtisan identification V?ill. change 
the g.roup dynamic of a . Board of Trustees. I don't think it 
wi11. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You don't want to go into, 
·before this Committee, how each of those people was .selected, 
do you? 

FREEHOLDER-ROBERTSON: Whatever you want to do is fine 
with me. What I'm saying--- when you were raising the question 
abo~t partisan affiliation -- is, I have seen Democrats who 
were appointed by Republican boards -- who were the best 
friends of the people appointing them. I have seen Republicans 
appointed by D.~mocratic boards -- who were the best friends of 
the people appointing them. So mere party identification 
doesn't tell you much. What you have to take a look at is what 
the credentials of the individual appointees are. And, I might 

point out to you,. I am not suggesting that there is any sort of 

a nirvana whatsoever. There isn't necessarily any reason to 
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feel that much more confident, except to the extent that there 
is at least new blood on the Board, looking at it with a fresh 
pair of eyes, under circumstances that have drawn attention to 
the critical nature of the planning process. And they have so 
far, from what I have been able to see, responded accordingly, 
and they have not been afraid to make other changes, especially 
in the leadership of the College, that are necessary. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: When I get letters from some of 
the people who are on the Board -- the very Board you are 
talking about ---accusing the Chairman of this Committee of 
politicing, I wonder from whence you come. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: From whence who comes? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: ·Whence you com~. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: I come? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yeah. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: .. Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 

from people I. ·never ·even met 
Chairman's involvement in this 
Lik~, I just discovered-- I 

I · mean, I have gotten letters 
before, who talk ·about the 
thing as a· political thing_. 
tripped over Passaic County 

Community College on t!'le way.to Market Street on~ day. I mean, 
you know of my standing with this. 'institution. I haven't 
~coked at it at arm's dis.tance, and neither have you .. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Well, that would be--
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 

being Democr:at or Republican. 
essence of my question. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: 

But it has nothing to· do with 
That is not the nature or the 

That would be something to take 
up with the individuals making those comments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I don't think it is worth 
taking up. I am just trying to make a point that it would seem 
to me that we are playing on a level field if we, at least 
perceptually~ try to be nonpartisan in our appointments. I 
have said that with other boards. I said that when we were in 
the~majbrity,. Nbrman~ 
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FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: I agree with that, but there is 

a difference between being nonpartisan and being bipartisan. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: All right, I agree with you, 

especially if by nonpartisan you mean to pick the best people 

available; the best qualified to do the job. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Let me ask the question again: 

Why should I be any more-- If. the President and the. Board of 

Trustees are the main problems at this College, or were the 

main problems, and the President has resigned~- Now we are 

left with the Board of Trustees. You have assure,P. me that we 

have Board members now who are not going to procr~stinate on 

this plan; are going . to put planning-- Planning is going to 

become an essential part of the Passaic County Corrununity 

College right now. 

What is different in the process of selecting the 

trustees now than a year ago, or two years ago, that should 

make me ·feel- comfortable that, not only ·are we going to get a 

new dynamic President,. but· we are going: to ·get· a new dynamic 

.nonpolitical Board of Trustees, that is not going to take 

orders from -- take your pick, Mr. Robertson? · · So, . assure me, 

reassure me,. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Oh, there is nothing with·which 

to reassure you from the point of view ·of the process. The 

process ~s precisely the same, ·and -it ma:y be flawed.· What I am 

suggesting to you· i~, the ·credenti~ls of the individuals who 

were put on the Board are pretty good, and so far their. trac_k 

record has been that they have been responsive to what has been 

done on Middle States. They have put a tremendous amount of 

time into dealing with what. are, at times, some very emotional 

issues, since they. involve friendships, employment stat~s, antl. 

things of that sort. 

That is the. only thing I can do to assure you; tell · 

you that the nature of the crisis that has been precipitated by 
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the long inaction has focused attention on the importance of 

planning. I will give you one example of that: It seems to 

me-- One of the cone 1 us ions I drew when I read through the 

small team report, was that perhaps we should have a 

professional planner on board here at the College, on a 

full-time basis, to help chart the future of the College. Now, 

that had never really been done. That has been put into the 

budget for next year. That step has finally been taken, but I 

question the former Board and the administration as to why, in 

the time when there were reserves sufficient to do so, that 

step had not been taken? 

This Board, from what I have been able to observe 

and· I can. only t~ll you from my observations -- seems to be 

sensitive to planning as an important issue, and seems to be 

willing to do the work necessary to put into place a plan. And 

-- this is one element you may or may not be getting today -­

there is also, within t~e College itself, a planning C<?mmittee 

that has.· been doing a great deal of· work and has soucjlit outside­

expert: help, in terms ·of consultant: help,·. to be able to put· 

together the process that would ;help to .satisfy Middle States' 

concerns. So, that proces~ has gon~ out. 

Can I·give you long~range ass~rances on the future of 

the governanc~ of the College? We'll see. Only ·time will tell 

on that. I . sense that this Board ·of Trustees is going in a 

com~letely different direction. than- the former -Board, and six 

of the· eight· Freeholder--appointed members ·are not. now on the 

Board, who were there at the time the small team visited. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Who are new members, in other 

words? 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: 

is one vacancy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: 

Five of them are new, and there 

Oh, one vacancy. 

But six of the eight Freeholder 

appointees are no longer on the Board. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: So there is at least a change, 

you know, in the personnel there. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: There's a change, yes. 
FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: That is correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Assemblyman Mecca? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Freeholder, I am convinced that 

you sincerely believe that the institution should survive and 
that education is your priority. I am concerned about us 
slipping back into the status quo, as Assemblyman Pascrell has 
indicated. I haven't really heard anything of a positive 
standpoint from you, either here today or in the press, that 
tells me that we are really going in the ri~ht direction. here. 
It seems like we are_ bandaging a hemorrhage,_ taking care of a 
critical problem right now .. 

I was hoping _to hear something, not ]ust ·a repetition 

of the problems Mr. Wright brought up, but about what dire~tion 
t~is College should go in; ~here you think success can be met. 
Does the Board o~ Chose~ Freeholders -~~vs any kind of plan that 

. . 
can convince this Committee that aft~r October 1 is met --
after that deadlirie is met and supp~sed~y we su6~e~d on Octob~r 
1 -- that we will be on the right .track? 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Wel.l, let me point out. first bf 
all, especi~l~y with all of the tal~ about tbe independence of 
boards-- I should point out first of all that that is not the 
role of the Freeholder Board, to chart the future of the 
College. That needs to be done by the Board of Trustees and by 
the College community as a whole. Therein lies the problem. 
My own view is I for instance I and this is a point that was 
brought up by the Vice 'Chancellor, what sorts of programs 
should be built into the curriculum? Well, ·one of the things 
that needs to be done is a good solid market surv.ey of the 

needs of attracting students to the institution for this 
program or that? What effect that would have on the 
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possibility of an up-county campus? I have yet to see good 

market studies there, and yet studies have been commissioned by 

this institution which, in my opinion, were a waste of money. 

But it all gets back to the same thing, Assemblyman; 

that is, there needs to be a process -- and this is the point 

that Middle States is making -- for sound planning at the 

institution. That is not the Freeholders· responsibility. 

That is the institution•s responsibility and the Board of 

Trustees . If· the Board of Trustees, which is the only 1 ink 

really, other than budgetary, between the Freeholders and the 

institution-- If the Board of . Trustees fails to do its job, 

the only recourse that the Board of Freeholders has is to 

change the personnel on the ·Board of ·Trustees. It has, in· 

fact, done that, in six out of eight cases. I· think we are 

responding in that regard. 

But I don•t· think you will hear; nor, frankly, should 

you hear, what the future o~. the College is from the F~eeho~der 

Board. 'rhe answer is, the College· will put into place the 

leadership ei:nd the . pl.anning proc!3ss · by which that answer can 

ultimately be.suggested. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, Freeholder 

Robertson~ for taking the time -~ your· valuable time -~ t6 be 

·here. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: ~y-pleasu~e, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: We hope we can reserve 

right to call you back, if necessary. 

FREEHOLDER ROBERTSON: Absolutely. 

ASSEMBLYMAN' PASCRELL: Okay, thank you. 

the 

The next· two people to testify will be Freeholder 

DuHaime, and then Dan Lyons. Mr. DuHaime, welcome aboard. 

Thank you for iaking the time to bare about our College. We 

hope you will make your remarks brief and to tbe point; then, 

if there are any questions, we will go from there. 
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F R E E H 0 L DE R D r R. R I C H A R D A. D u H A I M E: 

My remarks will be very brief, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for the 

opportunity. I am here in response to your letter and your 

invitation. I feel that Freeholder Robertson's report was very 

concise, and I will let that stand. 

I just want to say one or two things. First, I hope 

our discussion here will not deteriorate into any kind of a 

po 1 it ical argument, or response, between you and me. I think 

this is something that is very important -- the College -- and 

to get into a debate, at this point in time, I don't think 

would be fruitful. 

The F~eeholders are responsible to 450,000 to 500, ooo 
people in this co-unty, anq whether it be this College or ·the 

Vo-Tech school or the Mental Health Board or the Human Services 

Board or whatever board it may be, it is the. Freeholders' 

responsibility to oversee every one of them. If something is 

going wrong with any one of them, it ·is the responsibility of 

·the Board of Freeholders to re~pond to that. 

That is exactly what the Freeholders did when the 

Middle States report came. out. We . never · had any input, and 

ri~ver aspired to have any input into how this College is run. _, 

However, when Middle States came out and saiq, "You are 

deficient iri three areas," or, in effect, "You are fai 1 ing in 

three areas," it was then up to the Freeholders to respond to 

that. 

We did so by removing five trustees _who had been here 

during the period of time t.he, Middle States rep·ort indicated, 

and then we responded to Chancellor Hollander's request for the 

resignation of the President, and other trustees as well. The 

Chancellor, in fact, wanted all trustees to resign, but ·we did 

not think that was appropriate or fair, in that five of the 

trustees had only been put on a month earlier. 

That is why_ the Freeholders responded. It had nothing 

to do with politics. It had nothing to do with individuals. 
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All it had to do ·with was the health of this College, the 
county, the taxpayers who pay for this College, and the 
students who attend it, who are 3100 strong. We must make sure 
that they have a place to go. I believe now, with the 
resignation of the President, the major block to accreditation 
has been removed. I think that was a positive step forward. I 
believe the staff and the trustees will do what is necessary to 
make sure that this College receives its accreditation, and its 
license remains intact. 

Questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: On page 7 of his statement, 

President Wright said the following, and I would like your 
comment ori it . David (referring to Committee . Aide) , would you 
please .show Freeholder Director DuHaime page 7, the top 
paragraph? (Aide complies) This is part ot President Wright's 
·statement, which he read, starting with the word, ''during, .. 
which is the second sentence there. Do you hav~ it, Richard? 
(witness nods affirmatively) 

.. During the recent turmoil at Passaic County Commun·ity 
College, we were treated with sever a1 examples of indi vidua 1 

Freeholders at~empting to coerce individual trustees who 
.f 

obviously disagreed wfth. them. · This took the form of abusive 
language, embarrassing public statements, and,· in one 
outrageous case, a tru·stee being s~oned from an executive 

·meeting by_ a Freeholder in a blatant attempt to coerce that 
trustee's position and to .improperly influence the Board's 
decision.· .. 

Let me ask you about that: First of all, I wasn't at 
the meeting. Assemblyman Mecca wasn · t at the meeting. Is this 
an exaggeration of what happened, or is this what happened, ·in 
your estimation? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Obviously, you know as much about 
it as I do, because I wasn't at that meeting either. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Oh. 
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FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I have never seen that happen. 

Again, we do not want to get out of what the main issue is. 

The main issue is the College. That has nothing to do with 

this. The President is extremely good at fogging issues. He 

has been doing it for a long time. It has nothing to do with 

the accreditation of the College. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: May I, Mr. Cha.irman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yeah~ go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Mr. DuHaime, these are very 

serious accusations, and the Pres~dent has taken to a public 

forum with them. That for urn happens to be our Corrtmi ttee here 

today. That is something that we don't want to dwell on, but 

it is something that we cannot 'ignore. 

If you reac,i on --·and you probably heard his testimony_ 

when he was here -- he said examples like these have been going 

on for the 20 years that he has been associated with community 

colleges. So it is something that we are aware goes on. But · 
. . ~ . 

he.has taken particular attack on yo~r Boar~ of Freeholdets,_ of 

which you are the Director. Perhaps you were not at one 

·meeting-.:... 

I don't want to get off the· topic of the College 

either, ·but I am concerned that this may have a lot to do with 

the College. r· think it is our obligat.ion to ask you whether 

any of ·this goes on, either with or without your knowledge? If 

it is not with your knowledge; you can tell us that. If you 

have no knowledge of ·it, tell us that. But it is import an~ to 

us to know if this is going on here. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Assemblyman Mecca, you · know 

partisan politics as well as I do, and you know what goes on as 

well as I do. As far as this is concerned, I have absolutely 

no knowledge of it at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Thank ·you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Fine, good. That's all. 
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On that same page, Director DuHaime, at the bot·tom, 

President Wright attempts to sum up what he thinks are the two 

major points that came out in the Middle States report: liThe 

point of the Middle States and ·BHE guidelines is: 
Ill) 

title implies, 

colleges; and 

To raise the caliber of trustees who, as 

should be charged with the public trust 

the 

for 

.. 2) To see that academic decisions are insulated, 

insofar as possible, from the vagaries of oth~r political needs 

and expediences. '·' 

As far as defining what we are concerned about now and 

in the future, would you at least agree that this is a 

condensation, a proper condensation and .. synopsis, of where we 

should be focusing? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Assemblyman, I think that has 

already been done. I. think we did raise the caliber of the 

.trustees when we moved out the five and brought in the new five. 
,' . 

Let me just go back a· short ·period of time, and talk 

to you about the Vo-~ech_ school. . If you recal~, about four or 

five years. ago . when the Vo-Tech school was in . big tr:ouble, 

there were all sorts of char·ges and accusat fens, and it was a 

serious · situation. Many of the people over there were-

. changed. ;Right now I the Vo-Tech school probably has the best 

reputation of all vo~tech schools in the State of New Jersey. 

That was done certainly without the influence of the Board of 

Freeholders, other than the fact that ·some of the m~mbers of· 

the Boa.rd of Trustees there were changed. We feel the same 

thing is going to happen here at this College. 

·. ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: And yet the process of how we 

get trustees has not changed. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: The Pr:?cess has- not changed since 

you had a great deal of influence on the people who were put on 

Boards in 1985, '84, and '83 .. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Up until this moment, I think 

this meeting has been -- if I do say so myself run very 

fairly. I think we are trying . to bring out-- I don't think 

you have any problems with that, do you? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I think it has been run fairly, 

and I am trying to keep it that way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: But I think that our-­

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I don't want it to deteriorate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You had nothing to do with it. 

I think you made it clear, so you cannot be held responsible 

for what happened at a meeting you did not attend. But to 

quote the famous words of Norm Rober.tson, .. We are not 

interested in personalities; . we are interested in process ... 

And I think we have a right to talk about proc·ess. Yes, you 

did talk about process. 

The process is:. If we are at 11 A, II .how do we get to 

''B"? How do we get .. trustees that are responsive, s·ince they 

ar-e part of. 'the problem? ·That is not· what Mecca and Pa·screll 

say, or DuHaime says, a1 though you· have said · th~t, since you 

changed the Board. But that .is. what the Middle States report 

says. 'The President and ·the Board of· Trustees --· there ·is a 

problem there. They can~t get their act together._ That is. my 

synopsis. I mean, you wouldn't disagree- w~th my synopsis, 

would you? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I wouldn't disagree with it; in 

fact, I agree with.it. That is why·we changed.·those.numbers o-f 

trustees, and why we asked for the resignation of the President 

and the other trustees. We went along with that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you think that--

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: And, in fact, one of the trustees 

did also resign -- the Chairman of the. Board. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you think this institution, 

right nowj serves the needs of the students of Passaic County, 

given the- fact that we should: be doing more for the· up-county. 

people; and"we~all. agree~ on~that?:. 
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FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I don't think it--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: . Do you think it serves the 

people of this community? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I think it-­

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: The county community? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I think it certainly can do more, 

and it must do more. It must be more responsive than it has 

been to all the people of this county. I think it is serving 

only a small portion of the county, unfortunately. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Joe? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Mr. DuHaime, you did not respond 

to Hollander's request -- .to the Chaz:t,cellor' s request -- to 

eliminate the Board. of Trustees. You had already · done. the 

replacement prior to the rec.ommendation, correct? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Yes, the first five were done 

right after the Middle States report came down. ·That was 

before Chancellq~ Hollander asked . for the resignation 6f 

President· Wright. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Okay~ That. process had not taken 

a week or two, it had taken s$veral months, correct the 

replacement. of the Board members? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: When _we knew they were coming up,. 

and when the. report came it-- As you -kn~w, it is a damning 

report. It says, "You're failing." It is your peers saying to 

you-- If you are a lawyer~ it is the people on the Bar saying, 

"You are a lou~y lawyer," and that is exactly ·what happened 

here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Yeah. 

that kind of a review. {laughter) 

Fortunately, we do not have 

You saw the ·five members 

coming up· and you took what steps were necessary to get new 

members, but it had no real connection with this Middle States 

report--

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Yes, it did. It had a _great 

deal--
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ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Oh, it did? 
FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Yeah, absolutely. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: All right. Let me get a time 

frame, because I misunderstood it. What I understood was that 
Chancellor Hollander had recommended removal of the entire 
Board of Trustees. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: But that came after. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: All right. You indicated in your 

testimony that you had not done that; you did not take that 
recommendation because you had already just replaced five 
members. 

trustees 
on there. 
for the 
Trustees. 

-and it 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: No. I didn't agree with al~ the 
being removed, becav.se there_ were five brand-new- ones 

This came about after Chancellor Hollander had asked 
resignation of President W.right and the Board of 
This was after the Middle States report had come in, 

was after we had moved to remove those other five 
trustees--

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: I see: 
FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: --that we had the opportunity. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Are you_ satisfied with the Board 

of Trustees now? 
.. FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I think, seeing their decisive 

action, I am pleased that they did what· they did. I hope they 
will continue .in a forward-moving fashion and will make -sure 
that the accredita .. tion pro~ess ·is· accompli_shed. I'm sure that­
they will. I feel much more secure than I did before. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: All right. You are talking about 
the fact that you are pleased with them? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: I am talking about the Board as 
it is now, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: All right, but the decisive 

reactiori~ or action aa tQ the President? 
FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Okay. Just one other thing: Can 

you comment on the question of space briefly, if you will? 

Just give us an idea of where you think the trustees should be 

going as far as the acquiring of space, moving of space, or 

whatever, for the benefit of the College. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Well, just so you know, 

Assemblyman, it was just a year or two ago that we purchased 

the Public Service .building across- the street for the College 

and refurbished it, in response to a request from the President 

for the same lack of space reasons. We have -- and I think 

Freeholder Robertson said it very well -- had problems with the 

leadership of Paterson, as far as taking buildings off the tax 

rolls i"s concerned, and I can understand that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: It affects you at the county 

level, too, doesn't it? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: It affects us all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Sure. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: .Once you. take away any kind of a 

building it hurts the taxpayers of that area, -beea.use you have . 

taken away a viable piece of property. However, it is also 

very important for the corrununi ty to h~ve thiS· in$t i tut ion. 

That is the reason why we are fighting so hard to keep it here, 

· a~d fighting ·so- har<;i to make sure that the smalt part- .tha.t we 

play is done properly, and that this :i:nstitution remain a 

viable pa~t of our community for· the. next. number of years. As 

long as the ·_county is here,_ we want this institution to. stay 

here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Do we need more space? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: According to the President, we 

need more space. I am not an expert in that field. I will let 

the new President come in and make his assessment, and then­

come back to the Board of Freeholders for his recorrunendations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Through the trustees? 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: With the trustees. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Okay. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: Remember, the President sits with 

those trustees and is a very important part of that process at 

all times. He is at every meeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, Mr. DuHaime. 

FREEHOLDER DuHAIME: 

feels better, Mr. Chairman. 

Thank you, and I hope your eye 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you. The next witness 

wi 11 be Dan Lyons, faculty member . My God, Dan, do we go 

back? I can't believe it. 

DANIEL L. L Y 0 N S: It is amazing how we· have stayed 

so young .. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: How you have . stayed so young. 

Remember the bandbox we opened up in -- how we took the crumbs 

off the table -- that this county had to accept? 

MR. LYONS: Yeah, we have c.ome a ·long way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Welcome. Tell us why _you are 

here. 

MR. LYONS: Well, I would like to thank· you .for .the 

invitation which was sent to me. I a~ responding to that 

invitat-ion. I think what I have to say -- I_. have submitted a 

written·statement; it is very brief.-~ doesn't add. very much to 

the agenda as i.t _has been up until now, but ( will read it 

anyway. 

As a result of the. October vi~it and Marc~ ~eport from 

the Middle States Accreditation Association, some very positive 

things are occurring at Passaic County Conununity College. It 

is unfortunate that it has taken a crisis, for institutional 

planning and outcomes assessment to become important issues at 

our College. It is not in the statement, but I might indicate 

that without the crisfs, I _don't think institutional planning 

and outcomes assessment would be as far along as it is right 

now. 
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During the past academic year,· the College established 
a Planning Committee. Under the chairmanship of Professor 
Alison Chase, this committee is shaping specific goals and 
objectives for next year and is in the process of formulating a 
five-year plan with assessment dates and criteria. This 
planning model will be the basis for the acknowledgement of 
priorities and the allotm~nt of resources at the College. The 
assessment criteria will act as a means to monitor outcomes. 
So, built into this model will be outcomes assessment, as well 

as planning. 
In short, PCCC has done much to respond to. the 

criticisms from Middle States regarding planning and 
assessment. The steps·that have been taken should serve as an . 

. ongoing and long-term benefit to the College. 
That is the end of the statement. I wquld say that 

the show cause order coming from Middle States--= I · would say 
that the focus on planning that is transpiring here will answ~r 
the ques'tion -- will touch base with the issue ·of outcome 
assessment, and will also dear with the issue of·. governance. 
It is· my feeling that everything begins w.ith. haying. a pla~, 

which becomes the factor which determines the direction the . · 
College. is moving into and where the Co·llege would like to be 
five years from now, one year from now, or whatever-else. 

or:c~ everyone buys into that plan, ·once all sectors of 
the College community buy into the fact that we need this kind 
of institutional planning, then· I think a.ll the roles are 
clarified. Faculty does what it does; administrators do what 
they do. Everything is geared to-- The unifying effect of the 
plan goes from the trustees .right down to the lowest level at 
the College; faculty, I guess that would be. Of course, I am 
only kidding. 

In the context of it, I feel very optimistic that the 
responses taking place right now to ·the show cause order, in 
terms of a planning committee, an assessment outcomes 
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committee, and a show cause committee, are very appropriate. I 

don It think it will be from a lack of effort by the College 

community that the show cause order is not receiv:ed positively 

-- or, rather, that the response to the show cause order is not 

received positively by Middle States. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: As one so deeply involved in 

the operations at this institution, Dan and I mean that in a 

positive sense -- you have _just outlined a three-part simple 

process as to what is going on and what you hope to accomplish 

through this Committee. If it was so simple, and so clear, why 

couldn It we do this three years ago? What am I missing here, 

Dan? 

.MR. LYONS:. ·well I let m~ say this: We are all I . right 

now, being .educated on institutional planning. From the 

outside looking in, it appears to be a very simple process. It 

involves a change in the mindset so as to be thinking all the 

time in terms of what the .implications·are of doing this ver.sus 

that. 

So, right now, we are moving along. We are receiving 

an education in the process of iz:1sti tutional plan·ning. . I must 

a.ga.il! compliment A.lison Chase for the .work. she h.as put·. into 

it. I would say it will take three years from· now for this 

process to be really running as smooth-ly as we would want it to 

run. 

It appears t.o be an easy task to say, "Let • s start 

planning," and then start doing it. But it involves analyzing 

resource allotments; etc., etc.,.s6 it is more difficult. When 

you begin to build in things lik.e assessment criteria that are 

measurable, and you begin to determine dates for those 

assessments of outcomes, I think you are then dealing with 

something that involves a lot of intricacies. So it is a 

difficult thing to do. 

I would say, while it does not respond to your 

question directly, I think the called for strong professional 
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leadership that came from a couple of people today will 

facilitate the capability of the College to move forward in 

planning and outcomes assessment, and governance will fall into 

place as a result, as I see it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You followed this institution 

from its embryonic stages. You know the tough going we had 

back in I 72, I 73, I 74, and I 75, and there were those who said 

we would not survive 1 76. A lot of good memories. 

We are not just here talking about a technical 

glitch. The faculty has stated publicly -- I mean, I am not 

revealing any secrets here -- that you do not have confidence 

in the President of this institution to do the job. Since you 

were. so candid about the President, let- me ·ask you this 

question.: Do -you have confidence in the Board of Trustees? 

MR. LYONS: Well, I would say ~~ gett~ng back to the 

issue of pla_nning--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: That is ·like the, "When" did you 

stop beating your wife?" question, but go ahead.· 

MR .. LYONS: I would say that the Board of Trustees 

the - trustees who serve on ~his Board_.-- provide a ·service to 

the College. They may know little of. what boards ·of higher 

education are supposed to be· about: I think the direc-tive 

corning_ f·rom the leadership of. the· College -- the President· and 

·the high levels of administr-ation-- ·From . those sectors, the 

Board· learns what its role is supposed to be, Perhaps part of 

the problem has been the fact that the· Boa~d has not been 

clearly made aware of what ·its ·role is, if there is some 

problem in terms of stepping over boundaries. 

See, I think part of the problem is, without planning, 

no one knows what their role is, and everyone experiences the 

frustration of saying, "Shouldn It that be done over there?" 

Without planning it may not be something that is done. So 

someone jumps into the breach,_ and then someone else says, 

"Well, you Ire doing my job," or, "I lm, doing your job." See, 
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that is why I feel very optimistic about the planning model, 

because it will clarify the roles of all the sectors of the 

College community. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: All right. Cutting through the 

bureaucracy, are we serving the students of Passaic County? 

MR. LYONS: I would say that we have limitations on 

resources -- monetary resources, spatial resources, and, most 

importantly, human resources. So we have, for example, in our 

faculty, in what are traditional college subject areas; one 

faculty member per discipline, on the average. That makes it 

such that we are spread fairly thin, resource-wise. Spatially, 

or space-wise, we have some difficulties, particularly at 

points in the daytime-- In the daily calendar, there are times 

when we . do not have enough space. There may be other times 

where we have as much space as· you could need, because they are 
. . 

no:t pop:ular -hours for classes, or times when. students can make· 

it to class. 

So, I would say,_ given our resource limitations,· we 

are doing a fairly good job. I think we should continue to 

polish the apple right where we. are, rather than be looking 

toward up-county, or whatever, at this po~nt in time. That is 

my feeling. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Are you planning to stay? 

MR~· LYONS: Am. I planning to stay at the College? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yeah. · 

MR.· LYONS: Yes, I have every intent ion of staying 

. here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you. 

staying. 

MR. LYONS: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Just 

heard in previous testimony, I 

Freeholders mentioned. bringing in 

outside consultant for planning. 
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already set up, and Professor Chase is heading that cornmi t·tee. 

You seem to have formulated some plans that you are satisfied 

with. Do you see any reason to bring in an outsider -- a 

consultant from the outside? If you do, why? If you do not, 

why not? 

MR. LYONS: I would say that I am not the right person 

to ask that question of, but from what I can see, we are 

getting help in the form of consultants who deal with Professor . 

Chase and help to advise her in the direction we should be 

moving at particular points in our sequence. I would not like 

to preempt someone else who is more in a position to answer 

that question, but I would say that Middle States tends to look 

most favorably on the idea that the College plans for itself. 

It reminds me of the old idea, ... If I give a man a fish, he has 

food for today. If I teach him how to fish,· he has food for 

the rest of his life ... 

I think Middle S_tates has that concept; that they 

woutd- like to see· th~ colleges determine their own _de·stiny·_l?Y 

creatlng their own planning processes, as well as determining 

their. own priorities, etc. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Thank you . 

. ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Thank you, As·semblyman. . Thank 

you very·much, Dan. 

P~ofessor Richard Florio? We will have two more 

·speakers after that -- Alison Chase, whom we have referred to, 

and Audrey Heyman --- which will· conclude the he~ring·. This 

will be Professor Florio. Hi, Richard. Should I start 

singing, .. Seems Like Old Times ... ? 

P R 0 F E S S 0 R R I C H A R D F L 0 R I 0: Speaking 

about going back a long:way--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCREL~: Yeah, we sure do. It's good to 

see you. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: It's good to see· you here also, 

Assemblyman Pascrell. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Cut through all of this 

mumbo-jumbo. Where are we here, in this institution? 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: Well, of course, we do have a very 

serious show cause order here. I gave you a little statement. 

I would like to read some excerpts from it. In any case, it is 

a serious charge, and I say it is a serious charge because it 

is true. We certainly have not been responsive. We do not 

have proper outcomes measurements; we do not have proper 

planning; and as far as I can see, there certainly was a lot to 

be criticized about the governance of the institution. 

But I do have some faith in this newly organized 

Board, and I certainly have faith in the internal planning 

committee chaired by Professor Chase. I think we wi 11 retain· 

our accreditation. I don· t say this· is going to be. an easy 

thing to do; it is not a given that we will retain that 

accreditation. But what .I am concerned about is· what nappens · 

afterward, because. answeri_~g the. show ca~se order ·is not the 

. be-all a~d end-all . -- as I said in my 1 itt le. memo here ~- to. 

our problems. We have important needs tha~ have to b~ met. 

The first among the.se is leadership. I think that has 

been our problem,· _probably, -throughout the life of this 

College.· We need a President with strong academic 

credentials. That is ·impor.tant to us as faculty-.· We want to 

be able· to look up to that President. We want someone with 

good experience -- someone who . has an idea of what college 

means;. what it means to run a college; what it mean~ to be a 
. . 

college; someone who understands the role of the fa6ulty at a 

college. Some of what has been going on is a matter of faculty 

empowerment. Simply put, we didn't have much of it. 

We need someone who is sensitive to student neede, ·of 

course, and we need stability. This institution has not been 
. . . 

very stable. Stabi 1 i ty can be provided in a number of ways. 

Certainly funding is always part of it. You need to get to 

that, right? But that funding has to be properly managed. We 
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don't want to be run as if we were a business, but we want to 

be run in a businesslike manner. That's for sure. 

Stability can also be brought about by an 

administration that fosters and values loyality, hard work, and 

commitment, and seeks to retain, not dismiss, or turn over, or 

reorganize again and again its valuable, able workers. 

We certainly need freedom from political interference, 

but we must be very careful to distinguish political 

responsibility from political manipulation. We do not wish to 

become a haven for. po 1 it ical patronage. On the other hand, we 

reject those who hide behind the word II autonomy, II . in order to 

insulate themselves from responsibility to their constituents. 

Because faculty are often not the influence they· once 

were at colleges -- once upon· a time in history they were 

colleges; that is ·what the word means; because some management 

positions are often ~ied in with administration at the top; and 

because trust~es often view faculty as merely another group of 

emp~oyers -- they oftei-t ~orne.· f~om the business world,. you ~_{now,. 
as I did .-- the leadership of a college may .not be subject 't6 

change from within, r~form, removal,· what have you. .This is 

why we h~d to·ask for s~pport fro~ forces outside t~e College. 

At ·all levels we received that support. We talked to old 

friends, and even· some old enem·ies. We worked with ·the ANJCCF 

--·the- Association of New Jersey ·community Col!'ege Faculties -­

to testify to the Chancellor of our problems; with the parent 

organization, the New Jersey Education Associat~on, o£ course; 

and, to some degree, with the Passaic County educators as well. 

As I say, we received that support. I think there is 

some evidence of it already. We welcomed it, and w~ thank 

those who helped us. 

Now, what we are asking you, of course, is the other 

problem. We need your best. wishes here I and we need the kind 

of statements -- the kind of moral suasion that we have been 

hearing. That is very important to us. It is very important 
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to hear that people from outside of this institution care about 

us and want to make us what we really could be. You know, we 

have had pote.IU:ial for a long time. We are kind of like Darryl 

Strawberry, you know. We are still waiting for him to hit that 

1 ongest home run ever , but maybe he wi 11 , and maybe he won' t . 

We have a lot C?f potential, but we have a lot of growing to 

do. That has been constantly inhibited -- stopped. 

Now, we also, I think, are in search of a new 

Chancellor. And while we are very grateful to the current 

Chancellor for what he has done for the Passaic County 

Community College at this point -- eternally grateful, maybe-­

Well, you know, reform is always a wonderful thing. But what 

we surely need is a Chancellor who has faith in our. cotnmunity 

college system; one w~o understands that we ·do., in this. State, 

service over half -- ·at least some 52%, I think -- of the 

underg~aduate college students in New Jersey. 

Natura~ ly, of course, we need improved State . funding. 

You nad to. hear that, but there it -was ... 

AS-SEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Surprising. 

PROFESSOR F~ORIO: _ Yeah, such a · surpr is~. . -All of our 

community colleges do, but especially those which function in 

an· urban setting. . Our students are' good people. They want I 

n~ed, and deserve all the material advantages ·of their fellow 

students at more affluent schools, and, of course, we need your 

help in meeting those needs. 

We intend to-be around for a long time, Bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Good. I just want to make a 

c•otnmi tment to you as, not only the Chairman of the Assembly 

Higher Education Committee, but, as you know, ·I serve on the 

Appropriations Committee. We have already made our feelings 

knoWn to both Chairman Weiss and Chairman Watson that no longer 

will it be acceptable that the community colleges of this·state 

be treated as second:-class citizens. If you look at the cuts 

in education -- and, you know, we are facing a huge budget 
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problem -- you will see that county colleges, although they did 

not do well, did not do as badly as the other divisions of 

higher ed~cation. We have insisted on that, and we are still 

fighting that fight. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: I appreciate that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Because when it affects Bergen 

County, it affects us doubly. People think we are all on the 

same level, which we are not, and it is unfair to us. 

I like what you said about political interference. I 

think it is a fair statement. There is a difference, you 

know-- There are some "academicians" and "professionals" who 

hide behind this auton_omy. They have all nasty things to say 

about ·politicians, until it is budget time. Then, all of a 

sudden,· you· know,_ we are not so bad, both. on the county and the 

State levels. So, ·the~e is a·good give and take that should be 

experienced. 

However, I am sure you have read the Middle States. 

report. It .speaks for ·itself. Do you thii\k that · this 

institution, with the personnel who are in place right now, has 

the wherewithal. ·to re_spond to the deficiencies. that have been 

so outlined? 

PROFESSOR FLORIO-: With. the current. personnel we have? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yes.· 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: If you are spea_king of those 

principal issues we have talked about today the-planning and 

the outcomes measurement--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yes. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: --I would say, "Yes." 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yes, we do?. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: I would have to say, "Yes. " If you 

are talking about some other things that this College needs in 

order to do well down the road, for example, the issue of space 

and the number of teaching faculty, these things are 

interrelated. Of course, I am surprised sometimes to hear that 
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people have awakened to this. I recall when reorganizations 
moved faculty out. That is one. of the reasons we lack numbers 
of faculty, particularly in the College courses~-

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. 
PROFESSOR FLORIO: --those courses which you would 

normally think of that are present at every and any college. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: How many students, or what is 

the percentage of students at Passaic County Community College 
who are under the remediation plan? 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: I don • t have knowledge of that. 
Perhaps someone here can help me, but--

box. 

think? 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Is it bigger than a bread tiox? 
PROFESSOR FLORIO: It is certainly bigger than a bread 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Is it more than 25%? 
PROFESSOR FLORIO: I would guess that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Is it less than. 50%, do you 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: I don't think so. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Is it safe to say· . that 

somewhere between 25% and 50% or 60% of the students who come 
into this institution are ill-prepared to be here? 

. PROFESSOR FLORIO: I would say so. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Why? 
PROFESSOR FLORIO: Well, they often come without-­
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I me·an, this· is the real. meat 

and potatoes.of everything. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: Yeah, absolutely. You know, out 
there in the public school community, .I mean, that is where 
it's at. Those are where the trenches are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: And what are we doing about 
, that? What are you doing at this institution to deal with the 

problem that most of the students coming to this institution 

are coming ill-prepared? 
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PROFESSOR FLORIO: Well, I would say there is no 

coordinated plan. There are some bits and pieces. As Mr. 

Lyons indicated, there are people who sometimes pick up the 

slack. For example: . We have Phil Metz, one of our math 

teachers, who brings in Paterson teachers on a weekly basis to 

instruct them in ways of instructing their students. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Good. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: Those sorts of things happen. We 

have brought students from the various public schools in here 

to see what a college is like and to k~nd of enco~rage them to 

-- to plant the seed of going to college in their minds, and so 

forth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL :· Business as· usual is no longer-

accept~ble, Professor Florio, is that correct? 

you. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: I would agree. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Mr. Mecca? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: . Thank you for coming. 

PROFESSOR FLORIO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: We app'reciate your time. ·Thank 

May I now have Alison Chase, Coordinator of Planning. 

We have heard. a lot about planning, Al isori.. · _Did you wan·t to 

. ask. some questions? 

P R 0 F E S S 0 R A L I S 0 N · C H A S E: Well; let me-- I 

don•t have a writte~ statement, but I have some things that I 

can say as background information. 
. . 

What we have been doing since I became involved in 

this, which was in October of 1989, is to develop and begin to 

put into place a process whereby P<;:CC will plan systematically 

and thoughtfully for both the long-term and the short-term,· in 

a manner that is appropriate to an institution of higher 

education. 

Now, I was asked to work on this in the fall. I did 

so on a part-time basis, while fulfilling my obligations as a 
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faculty member. This semester, I have been working on it 

full-time, on release-time from my faculty assignments. 

We have done a number of things that I think would 

interest you, which I believe are very encouraging in terms of 

our meeting our Middle States -- or answering our Middle States 

show cause. First, and I think it is important that you know 

this, we requested from Middle States a recommendation as to a 

planning consultant who could help us. They suggested a Dr. 

Charlene Nunley, who has been assisting me and the College 

regularly throughout the spring semester. She has been 

enormously helpful. She was the recommendation of the Middle 

States staff, although sbe stresses that she is not a Middle 

States she does not belong to Middle States, and her 

recommendations are her own, not those o"f Middle States. 

What we have done is put tog~~her an internal planning 

process that I think is very exciting. Middle States 

cr~ticized _us for not having a process that involved faculty,. 

administration, staff, and students-. We now have ·an . internai 

planning comrni ttee that does this. Our meetings are open. We 

are, at this very moment, putting together a set of limited, 

short-term· objectives for: .next year, as well as developing for 

Board review_on June 25, a really detai~ed planning ~odel as to 

how, over the ·next .two to three years,· we wi 11 implement a 

planning system here that_ will integrate .goals and objectives 

with unit plans with budgeting _with accountability. 

So, by the tim~ this is fully in place, it should be 

very much easier for everyone. That includes the Board, the 

Freeholders, and the State .... - if it is so interested at that 

time -- to know who we are, what we intend to do, and whether 

or not we have done it; in other words, where the resources are 

going. I feel very encour_aged and optimistic about this 

process. We have not had, up to this point, a· systematic 

·process along these 1 ines, but we are well along in: terms of· 

developing it. 
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The short-term goals and objectives are really the 

first step in doing this. We need to be trained to write these 

kinds of objectives. We need to be trained to develop these 

kinds of assessment criteria. We are learning. My faculty 

role here is as a developmental educator. That means that I 

teach the students who are very underprepared. Readers who 

don't yet read at the eighth level are my students. 

I happen to believe that institutions, as well as 

students, can develop. They can develop skills; they can 

develop expertise, and I really believe quite strongly that 

that is what we are doing. Over the next six months, our 

agenda as an internal planning committee will be to look at 

ext&nal factors, outside trends, demographics, i_IMligration ·· 

trends, economic trends in the ·county, county educational 

needs; look at the internal streng·ths and weaknesses of. this 

institution, and make recommendations which will go through our 

Presid~nt, or Acting President, to the Board of Trustees. for 

·their deliberation arid action. 

It is critical that the Board unde~stands, · that 

everyone understands, that this planning process must result in· 

decisions. If it does. not result in decisions _and a~tions that 

can flow from decisions, we will all very s~on lose heart. 

What we will be . attempting to do over the· hext six months is 

make recommendations concerning appropriate missions for this 

College, just who·it is we_want to serve. That could very well 

include K through 8; it could very well include making outreach 

efforts in terms of literacy; it could very well include 

further efforts to attract people from other parts of the 

county. Those sorts of determinations are yet to be made as a 

result of this process. 

We wi 11 be look~ng at ·programs service mix; in other 

words, what do you do to serve the people you ·have decided to 

serve? What is appropriate? We will be looking at our 

comparative advantage in terms .. of who the competition is fat 
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students. From determinations concerning these areas, we will 

be setting long-range objectives for the College for Board 

approval. The Board role is critical here. We, as 

professionals within the College, will be doing- our work. 

These will flow through the President, or Acting President, to 

the Board for their review, endorsement, or modification, but 

really for decisions. Flowing from those five-year objectives, 

we will go on to develop unit objectives, so that every area of 

this College is working to advance the College in the direction 

that ha·s been set, really, by the Board. 

That is what we are attempting to do. It is 

ambitious. You know, when you asked earlier, "Why wasn't this 

done earlier, it sounds like su-ch common sense?"-- It does 

sound 1 ike common sense. It is common sense,- but it requires a 

different approach, and we require training on this. We will 

continue to request. the assistance of Dr. Nuriley, wh_o has been 
. . 

enormous~y helpful. It is he~ stance that -- as has been said 

earlier -~ it i"s appropriate for _an iris.titutio·n to set its own 

.course, and that if you bring in an outsider to do the 

planning, you do not then develop as an institution in the ways_ 

that you need to. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Has the College timely filed an 

appeal· of ~he decision· of the Commission? 

PROFESSOR .CHASE: To my knowledge, we did not file an 

appeal of t-he decision. We did reply· to it. The President 

wrot~ a letter of response. We will be filing our response to. 

it. I believe our deadline--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Will the . College appeal the 

Commission's decision? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: It was not my understanding that we· 

were going to appeal it, but that we wo~ld, in fact, show cause 

as to-why they should not remove our accreditation. 

In terms_ of planning, I speak with some confidence 

that we will be able to demonstrate to Middle States that we 
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are clearly moving in the direction they want us to move. Not 
only are we moving in that direction, but that we believe it is 
an appropriate direction~ It is not just externally imposed on 
us. And that we have taken a number of concrete steps to get 
there, so we won't be presenting them just with something we 
intend to do next year, but that we are doing now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So, at this time, the College 
has made a decision not to appeal the decision, as far as you 
know? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: I would ask for collaboration. We 
have not appealed the decision. (indiscernible comment in 
response from unidentified speaker in audience) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL·: That is correct, okay. 
PROFESSOR CHASE: We intend to show cause as to why 

·they should not do it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: How long have ·you· been ·at ·this 

institution? 
PROFESSOR CHASE:· Since· ·1982 as a part-time person.; 

1983 as a full-time faculty member. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: And you taught in what_ areas? 
PROFESSOR CHASE: I taught in the basic skills. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: The basic skllls area?­
PROFESSOR CHASE: · Yes. I teach the s.tudents.· who. come 

in here very poorly prepared. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: N_ow, you said beginning in 

October of 1989, you too.k the position o·f coordinator of 
plann1ng. Is that--

PROFESSOR CHASE: I was asked to coordinate .the 
planning process. At that time,· I was already involved in 
teaching my courses for the semester. I said I would undertake. 
to organize it on a part-time basis during the fall, and that I 
would be willing to work on it full-time in the spri~g 

semester. As was said ear 1 ier, we really needed to learn how 
to go about this. I needed to learn how to go about it. I am 
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now working on it full-time, and I expect to continue in this 

role so long as it is deemed appropriate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: And you are moving to address 

the concerns that have been brought to our at tent ion through 

Middle States. Are you intending to go out of the institution 

to get expertise and input from people outside of this 

institution? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Are you talking about within the 

county, or are you talking about--

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Within the county, within the 

planet, you know--

PROFESSO~ CHASE: We have, in· fact, by hiring Dr . 

Nunley to come in from Maryland as our planning consultant,·, and 

· she is acting as a planning consultant. She is -not doing the 

planning for us, ·but she is !=eal.ly 9iving us a great deal ·of 

advice and counsel as to how to proceed with it. In·- addition, 

I and another faculty member .have gone to . a series of seminar_s 

on strategic planning: in higher education and are continuing to 

t~ain qurselves in that kind of way. We do not, at thi~ tim~, 

int.and to bring in any other professional~, a.l though we are 

exploring the possibility of bringing in -- in ~act, it may be 

settled by now ~- a very highly respected profSssional to 

assist us in outcomes assessment -- assessing qUality. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELIJ: Let. me ask you this question, 

and you do not have to answer it." 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Do you agree with the 

assessment of Dan Lyons and Professor Florio. that the faculty 

had lost confidence in the President? Do you agree with that 

stat.ement? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: I think the faculty had lost 

confidence in the President. Yes, I do agree. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Who recommended you for the 

position of coordinator of planning? 
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PROFESSOR CHASE: As I understand it, it came out of a 

group discussion. I was recommended for certain qualities that 

I seem to possess; an organized mind, an ability to write well, 

and the general abilities to get along with most people. 

Almost all of those are diminishing {laughter), I don't know, 

at least getting along with people. I would stress that I did 

not come to this with a planning background, but Middle States, 

and others, do seem to feel that it is appropriate for planning 

to come with a faculty lead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: That's healthy. 

PROFESSOR CHASE: And I am a quick learner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: One of the things I have 

detected also, is that ~he faculty does not fe~l it is part of 

. the governance of ·the. institution. . Will . you go into. th~t 

aspect of the· planning process as well? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Well, it is important. to understand 

that on this internal pl~nning commi t1:ee, if you count me as ~ 

faculty. member on it·-~ althoug~ I am not presently teaching -­

we_. have six faculty, five administrators, two staff members, 

and two students.. So the balance is in .favor of faculty on 

this. committee. . The planning process,· as_ we go along, wi 11 

have wide participation within the College. All the meetings 

are open. I .mean, they are· post~d. _So anyone who, in fact, 

wishes to par.ticipate . in th~m, will be welcomed. We are 

attempting to get as much iriput as possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: so the crisis could be seen as 

an opportunity? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: I see it as a very great 

opportunity, and I really personally believe that we will 

become a much str?nger College as a result of this. I also 

believe, if you look for the silver lining, that Middle States 

scrutiny will encourage us to continue will make it 

mandatory that we continue in this process, which I believe is 

essential. I think we would be foolish to think that once we 
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show cause they are going to say, "Okay, everything is dandy. 

We I 11 see you in three years." What they will want, I believe 
• -- and I don It have any inside track on this -- is continued 

evidence that we are moving along as we said we would, which 

will require us to do it, and I think that is positive. It 

will keep it in front of the minds of the Board of Trustees and 

certainly make it an institutional priority. So I think it is 

very positive, yes, I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Assemblyman Mecca? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: I have no quest ions, but I thank 

you for coming forward. You didn It have a prepared statement, 

but your presentation was one of the best we have heard .. 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Thank you. Maybe it is because I ·am 

a fast talker that I got asked .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Alison, bef9re yo~ leave, would 

you provide the Committee with th·e following: Number one-­

PROFESSOR CHASE: Certainl.Y. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: --over the past· three years: 

including this year, full-t~me equivalent stud~nts and· broken 

down.into full-time and part~time students; 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Full-time enrollment? I don It have 

that information in front of me--

·ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: 

interest. 

PROF.ESSOR CHA&E: Okay. 

Broken down into areas of 

ASSEMBLYMAN .PASCRELL: Number two, a hreakdown of· 

where the students of this institution ·come from. Number • 
three, how many of the full-time and how many of the p~rt-time 

students are in remediation? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Excuse me. I would just say, in 

terms of remediation, it depends on how you defin·e that. We 

have, as you know, a large English as a Second Language 

Department. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I don't consider that 

remediation, do you? 

students. 

• PROFESSOR CHASE: Some of them are, in fact, remedial 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Then they will be so noted. 
PROFESSOR ·cHASE: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Number four, the remediation 

number~ particularly-- I would like to see them over the· past 
three or four years, so I can make a comparison of things. And 
finally, what courses we have and what courses, in your 
estimation, we are talking about incorporating in. the 
institution? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: All right, what courses we have, and 
what we are discussing adding.. I would suggest that, at this 
particular point in our timing process.-- at_this moment in our 
planning ·process -- I wou!d hesitate to make anything that 
could be construed· as a recomm~ndation about future programs . 

. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Right. 
PROFE$SOR CHASE: · I can give you a rundown on some of 

the things that have come up, ·but--
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Haven· t we had,. in the past 

. . 
five years·, two needs assessments done in this . county . about 
what· students, o·fder and younger, are looking for in the 
C~nununity Coll_ege? Aren · t there two reports floating· around 
someplace that thi~ institution--

PROFESSOR CHASE: We do have reports. 
ASSEMBLYMAN. PASCRELL: Reports that we paid a lot of 

money for. 

charge--

PROFESSOR CHASE: We do have reports, yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Okay. 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: That was not the 

PROFESSOR CHASE: They· were not needs assessments in 
terms .. of program needs_, One·· of the things we are aware of, 
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however, is that within our existing resources, we do want to 
do a community needs assessment, and we are, in fact, exploring 
appropriate instruments to do that. It is a costly undertaking. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: At first blush, are we offering 
the courses best suited to our population? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Is this in my opinion? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: At second blush. 
PROFESSOR CHASE: My opinion is that the courses we 

are offering are appropriate. Yes, we are offering appropriate 
courses. The question is whether or not the ones we are 
offering at this time are the best use of limited resources. I 
don't know what we should add. I am not yet prepared to say. 
One of the things the internal planning cornmi ttee wi 11 be 
attempting· to do is to make. hard decisions about what kind of 
program service mix is appropriate. 
maintain? .Do we want to terminate? 
And what would we like to add? 

That means: Do we want to 
Do we want to strengthen? 

ASSEMBLYMAN. PASCRELL: . Is it p~ssible,' when this 
institution ~as going. through prop~gandizing how the student 

. body . was shrinking in. '86, '87, and '88, anc;i ·then we kind of 
reversed it in ·'89-- Isn't it possible that part of the 
shrinking_ of the population was due to the fact that we did not 
h~ve an internal planning process and were not keeping up with 
the needs. of . the people out there who would choose to go to 
your institution? Is that possible? 

PROFESSOR CHASE: Quite .frankly, I am a convert to 
planning. I think, yes, that is· possible. I believe this 
makes sense -- this process in which we. are now involved. I 
cannot speak to hi story; I was not invo 1 ved in it at that 
time. I think, yes, it seems to me --yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: ·Thank you. We are very 
grateful. If yo~ could please--

PROFESSOR CHASE: We will get you that. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: --give that material to David, 

one of our staff members-- David, you communicate, please, 

with Professor Chase, to see how we can get that to all 

members. Plus, before we get to Audrey Heyman, make sure that 

a copy of the hearing today will go to the Committee members, 

as well as the President, and will be available here at the 

Library, so that people can view it. There are no hidden 

reports. I want everyone to be able to see what was said 

today, including the testimony, of course. 

All r_ight, Audrey Heyman. 

A U D R E Y H E Y M A N: I am Audrey Heyman, President of 

the Passaic County Community College Supportive Staff 

Association, whic:tt is affiliated with the NJEA, and which 

includes secretaries, custodians, maintenance employees, ·and 

security personnel at the College. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Will you wait for just one 

second, please? (technical dif~~culties with recorder) Would 

you mind starting again? 

MS. HEYMAN: The Assoc;:iation represents approximately 

.80% of the employees here, which are s~c-retaries, custodfans, 

maintenance employees, and security personnel at the College. 

Many of our employees are the sole support of their 

families, and some are single parents. Therefore, we are very 

concerned about the future of Passaic . ·County Community 

College. ·Also, we are students here. 

For the most part, the member;s- of the Association and 

the officers have not been involved in the accreditation matter 

which the Assembly Higher Educatiotl Committee is looking at 

today. The members of the Association are ready and willing to 

help the College in any way we can. 

Employee t~rnover has been a problem here at Passaic­

County Community College. The Association will continue to 

work to improve conditions here so that employees will be 

encouraged to continue as-employees of the College. 
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I hope the work of this Committee will help the 

College retain its accreditation. The Passaic County Community 

College Supportive Staff Association is ready to help out in 

any way possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You did a suburb job, Audrey. 

Relax. 

Let me ask you some quest ions. I think they are 

simple questions, but, you know, they may not be. How do most 

people get their jobs at Passaic County Community College -­

the people who are part of the supportive staff? 

paper. 

MS. HEYMAN: The jobs are usually advertised in the 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: They are adver.tised? 

MS. HEYMAN: Some are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: And then the people come in to 

be interviewed? 

MS. HEYMAN: Yes, come in for an interview. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: ·Then you are selected, or. you 

are not selected? 

MS~ HEYMAN: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: How long have you worked there? 

MS. HEYMAN: Going on for two years .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. PASCRELL: Going on for two. years,, and you 

are already the President of this Association representing 80% 

of the employees? You • ve got power in your hands, Audrey. 

You've got more power than anyone siiting on that_ side of the 

table or this side of the table·, whether you know it or not. 

What are your perceptions-- I am a teacher, Audrey 

let's have a little conversation here -- a forme.r teacher, a 

trustee at this institution, and I was on the Board of Ed. I 

find out more things from the people whom "we least expect·· -­

because we are all talking about things up here which sound 

lovely and charming, but when you are· on the supportive staff, 

you are the first to go whenever there is a pinch. 

MS~; HEYMAN:~ Right ... 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You are the least 1 istened to, 
and it probably has a lot to do with respect. Okay? So, let's 
respectfully talk to one another for a second. 

What is your perception about things here, generally 
speaking? I don't want you to get into specifics, but what do 
you see? What do you perceive? 

MS. HEYMAN: I think the College is doing a good job 
for the students. You should hear some of the students. When 
they·heard the school was going to close-- and they just heard 
that--

colleges. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Yeah? 
MS. HEYMAN: --they were very upset about it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Righ_t. 
MS. HEYMAN: Because some can't afford to go to other 

ASSEMBLYMAN .~ASCRELL: ·Right. 
MS. HEYMAN: Some have children; some are sick and not 

able;· transpo"rtation-- There are a· ·lot . of things this school 
. . 

is doing for a lot of kids around here. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I'm glad you said that. That 

is important.. In other words, there is a good base of students 
· who feel the institution is il'ecessary-­

MS. HE~: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: --and hopefully it can get its 

act together to stay o~ botrd. You heard tram the Department 
of_ Higher Education that the agenda is to !teep it open. I 
mean, you didn't hear anyt.hing different than I heard. 

MS. HEYMAN: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: So, there is no attempt to 

merge this with Bergen County Community College. There is no 
attempt to merge it with Essex County Conununity College·. There 
is an attempt to keep us as an entity. One of the alt.ernatives 
di~cussed by the Chancellor in the past has been that maybe we 
should have a closer relationship with William Paterson 
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College; maybe we should have. a closer relationship with Bergen 

County Community College. But regardless of those 

recommendations, Audrey, we are going to have an institution 

here, aren't we? 

MS. HEYMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: You are convinced of that? 

MS. HEYMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: See, I feel good hearing that 

from you, rather than from the Department of Higher 

MS. HEYMAN: Well, I hope so. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Because it's us 

this institution. Higher Ed didn't want us 

Education. 

who started 

here. The 

Freeholders didn't want us here. The City of ·Paterson--- Most 

of the officials at the time didn · t want us here. But, we· re 

here. 

So, when you say there is a good esprit de corps, I am 

confident, and I can take this back .to Trenton. I can take 

th~$ back to the Appropriations Committee. I am·going to.~ight 

for every dime fo-r this institution .. .I am going to .do my part 

-- everything that is humel:nly poseible,. Audrey -- and I know 

you are going to do yours. I _have a strong feeling· that we are 

gping to continue, but that does not mean-- We know·we have to 

respond to the deficiencies which Middle.· St.ate.s says we have. 

I 'm sur.e you would wa~t that. · We don • t want to just be an 

institution that people_ walk through. . We want to be an 

institution of e~cellence, and we wer~. I doQ't know ~hat has 

happened in the last four· or five years.· We slipped, but the 

students have not given up on the institution, have they, 

Audrey? 

MS. HEYMAN: No. I have talked to a lot of people 

outside the school, and they have talked about how good the 

school was for their children, because they did go here at one 

time. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Did you ever notice about this 

institution, Audrey, that it is one of the very few buildings 

in this city that -- off the record -- never has any graffiti 

on it? Did it ever strike you that the court buildings, the 

jail, schools-- This institution, in the middle of town, in 

the middle of where most people in this county wouldn't even 

travel, Audrey--

MS. HEYMAN: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Let's say it the way it is, 

Audrey; don't hold back on me. But there is no graffiti on the 

buildings. Why do you think that is the case? I mean, do we 

have a gun turret? Do we have a patrol? What ·are we doing 

here? Is . it invisible ink they are using on the building_s? 

What is the reason, Audrey? 

MS. HEYMAN: Because the students who go here are 

concerned, and they appreciate the school being here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL; Don't mess with this school? 

·Ms. H~: ~igh-t. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCR~LL:. .No politician. can. ·mess with 

this school? No Chancellor c~n? No Assemblyman can? Nobody 

can mess with this institution? .. Ther:e is a lesson here. Why 

are we missing the lesson, Audrey? Why don· t ·people lo.ok at 

_this institution, and say, "There hc~:s: to .be·a reason ·why the 

cort)llluni ty protects. the institution." I mean, it's not perfect ... 

and it is never goin9 to .b.e. It is never going to be perfect. 

I t~ank you for taking ·the time_ to come_ forward, and 

for sharing with us, you know, your thoughts and your 

perceptions. They are important to me per.sonaily, and they are 

important to this Committee. I want you to know that. Are you 

relaxed now? 

MS. HEYMAN: A little. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Then let me ask you this: Do 

you have· anything more to-say? 
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MS. HEYMAN: No. I just think you should 1 isten to 
the little man, as well as the -- like you say -- the higher 
ups. 

today. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: I•m sorry no students testified 
If we had had this hearing at the time we wanted to 

have it, there would have been students. 
Assemblyman Mecca? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Ladies and gentlemen, we will 

bring this hearing to a close. Is it time to close, Stan? 
(affirmative response from audience) Thank you. 

We will close the hearing. We will have a report. It 
is not unlikely that we will be back to is.sue some statements. 
We are going to look ·at this very carefully. ~ want . you to 
know that the Ch~irman ·will be in touch with the Department of 
Higher Education. I want to know what the Department is doing 
for this institution r.ight now. I also want to know. how the 
Department is ass~sting the institution in obtainin~ a ne~ 

Presidez:1t, and_ we are going. to· have some things to say about 
how trustees are selected to.this institution, because I do not 
feel -- I can only speak for ~yself no~. -:-- confident that the 
process is any differen.t now than· it was three or four years 
ago. I do not. feel at al.l confident. And if need be, I will 
have to discuss how they w~re selected, but we will get to that 

· .. 
bridge. Rome was not conquered in a day. 

Joe, do you have any final comments? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Nothing, thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PASCRELL: Does any staff member have 

anything to say? (no response) Thank you very much for· taking 
your time and your efforts. Hopefully, the institution will be 
the better for it. Thank you, Audrey. 

MS. HEYMAN: Thank you. 

(HEARINGCON~LUDED) 
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Thr ~rov~min- board is tht" lrpll)· ron!itituted bod)· that 

lt"r'V~!i the ruhlk inten:st b)· H"rin- that the institution is "·hat 

it is intended to be, that it fulfills its announced mission and 

~roal!i, and ensures its t"onrinuity. To thi .. end, a hnard appoint" 

a chief cxennin nffil·cr, dc,·clop" hroatf institutional polil")', pro­

vide!> advice on major is .. ucs. and !litri\'c'i to Cfmscrvc. dc.·,·clop and 

enhance the.· institution '!ii resources. The hoard. functioning alwavs 

as a collcc.·tivc hod~·, is entru!lited with !litcwardship of the in!iititu­

tinn 's property and assets, hut more importantly, it i!li char~ed with 

uphnldin~ the institution's reason for hc:in~-its cdut.-ational mis­

sion. A manifestation of hoard responsibility is its willin~ess 

re~larJy and continuously to asscs!li its own effectiveness as a part 

of the institution's on~oing self-study and plannin~ acth;ties. 

The governing hoard controls and suppons an institution's plans 

and operation, but it does not mana~e or meddle in the day-to-day 

affairs of the institution. Many different structures and procedures 

characterize the governing boards of American institutions of 

higher education, and members may be elected or appointed in 

accord with each institution's charter and/or by-laws. A board's 

effectiveness depends not on adherence to any particular panern, 

but rather on a clear understandi.ng and acceptance of its function. 

\\'hatever the title.....-trustees, governors, regents, or otherwise-a 

board is central to the effective. functioning of an educational 

institutio~. Always its advocate, and if necessary, its defender, the 

board is ultimately responsible for the institution's inte~C}··and 

quality. 
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financially from il. They arc its impartial ~overnors and simult;l 
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offin·. with a sense of re-sponsibility and rcadinc~~ to hcwnll 

ac.·qu_aintc.:J with the institution in more than a superficial wa~ 

They must he responsi\·C.: to the:: needs and interest .. of the institu· 

tion 's c.·tmstitucncic!t, aware of the specialized nature of educationa 

prohlems, and especially sensitive to any c.·onflicts ofintcn:st. The~ 

must ac.·cc:pt responsibility for the total institution, be it a sin~lt 

campus or a c<>mplex of undergraduate, graduate, and profcssiona. 

schools, institutes, hospitals, or research centers. 

The board should have clearly stated authority commensurate wid· 

its responsibilities defined in by-laws which carefully setforth it~ 

purposes and its mode of operation. In the hands and authority 01 

the board are not only the approval and publication of the missior 

and goals but also the general plan and structure of the institutior: 

and pro\"ision of the support necessary for its facilities and pers~n­
nel. · The extent to which a board is aware of and accepts it~ 

responsibilities, and its effectiveness in performing its functions, is 

critically important to an institution's .very existence. Clearh· 

defined channels for communication with the institution's admini­

stration, faculty, and students, as well as "'ith the publi.c, are 

essential. 
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New Jersey Department of Higher Education, 
20 West State Street, Trenton, New 
Jersey 08625 

Office of Academic Programs 
New Jersey Department of Higher Education 
20 West State Street, Trenton, New 
Jersey 08625 

This report represents the views of the evaluation team 
as interpreted by the Chair; it goes directly to the institution 
before being considered by the Commission. It is a confidential 
document· prepared as an educational service for the benefit · 
of the institution. All comments in the re·port ·are made 
in good· faith, in an effort to assist- Passaic County Community 
College. This report is based solely on an educational 
evaluation of the institution, and of the manner in which 
it ·appears to· be carrying out its educational objectives. 

Date when instruction began: 1971 
. . 

Year of first graduating class: 1973 

Pr~sident: Dr. Kenneth E. Wright 

Chief Aca~em~c Officer: Dean Rosalie H~jegiati 

Chair of the Board of Trustees:·Mr. Severin Palydowycz 

introduction 

Passaic County Community College opened in 1971 with 
an initial academic· focus on Liberal Arts and transfer 
programs. In 1975, the College added career programs to 
its curricular offerirtgs _and initiated a complete reorganization. 
In June 1984, the College revised its mission statement, 
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clearly stating its purposes as follows: .. Passaic County 
Community College's mission is to promote individual growth, 
and community development by providing the residents of 
Passaic County the oppportunity to obtain any or all of 
the following: general education, career education, continuing 
education and community services." 

The College is governed by an eleven member Board. 
of Trustees, eight of whom are chosen by the Freeholders 
of the County governMent, two appointed by the State Board 
of Higher Education*, and one representative of the previous 
graduating class (alumni representative). The College 
President serves as an ex-officio non-voting member and 
Secretary to the Board of Trustees. 

Between 1983 (the date of its last accreditation visit) 
and October 1989, the College has made a noble effort to 
addres~ several issues or c6ncerns· through-administrative 
reorganiz~tion, a redefinition of administrative roles 
and responsibilities, a development of_goals and objectives 
consistent ~ith its revised (1984) mission statement, and 
a gr~ater participatory-governance system . 

. With the above background, the members of the Middle 
States Association's visiting team, in response to the 
Association's "very ·serious concerns about planning and 
outcomes assessment at Passaic Community College embarked 
upon a very intensive fact-finding and assessment visit. 
Specifically, the team sought to determine the College's 
response and. progress towards addre-ssing these issues. 
In.additiori to a thorough revie~ of the College's Periodic 
Review Report and a September 1, 1989 update of that report, 
the team was privy to reports submitted to the Board of 
Trustees' Planning Committee and minutes of the Planning 
Committee (July 25, July 31, -1989), Board Resolution 6A 
dated September 25, 1989, numerous College documents related 
to the Periodic Re~iew Repo~t, relevant New Jersey Department 
of Higher Education and Middle States Association documents. 

*By New Jersey statute, the county superintendent of schools 
serves on the Board of Trustees of all county community 
colleges· .. 
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These, coupled with individual and group interviews with 
administrators, faculty, students, one freeholder, members 
of the Board of Trustees and a review the MSA standards 
for accreditation enabled the team to present the following 
report to the College. · 

Standards for Accreditation 

While each standard for accreditation has significance 
in evaluating an institution for accreditation purposes, 
several specific ones are important for the focus and 
emphases on institutional planning and institutional outcomes 
assessment. These are: 

• "clearly stated mission, goals and objectives 
appropriate to the institution's resources and 
the needs of its constituents; 

• "persistent attention to the relation between goals 
.and outcomes; -

e. "a governing board actively fulfilling its respon­
sibilities of policy and ·resource development; 
an~, · 

• "perceptive, imaginative, and on-going institutional 
self-study and planning procedures aimed at intensifying 
effect.i veness in high education." . · 

. Using these standards within the-context of the Association's 
Cha~acteristics bf Excellence in Higher Education, w~ make 
the fo~lowing observations and recommendations: 

Mission, Goals and Objectives: After the 1984 revision 
of its mission statement, the College specified a set of 
goals.and objectives th~t it identified as charting the 
course of the College for the next five years. Adopted 
in 1986 by the College's Academic Council, these were submitted 
to the Board of Trustees by the College President. No · 
action was taken by the Board until September 25, 1989. · 
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Although clearly stated, the team believes the goals 
.and objectives may be too ambitious. The team aiso questio~s 
whether all of the goals and objectives are appropriate 
to the institution's resources. For example, the goal 
to become a "truly county-wide institution," and the objective 
that gives the highest (italics added) priority to pursue 
and plan the development of an up-county facility, may 
be less appropriate for the available resources of Passaic 
County Community College in 1989 than when initially proposed. 
Moreover. the lack of timely action by the Board. the passage 
of_ time and the chang_ing conditions wi th_in the College 
have conspired to make a reexamination of the thes~ goals 
and ob jecti v_~..§.....!Le~~s~~:r:L.i~_j:he light of the College's 
1989 realities. Therefore, we recommend 

• that the College reexamine its goals and­
objectives and establish priority objectives 
that it believes it can achieve and support by 
with the fiscal and personnel resources of the 
College. 

Persistent attention to the relation be.tween goals and 
outcomes: One characteristi~· of excellence artic~ulated 
by MSA is a multi;...dimensional plan·for assessing.outcomes 
based on goals that uses qualitative and quantitative measures. 
Outcomes assessment should be not.on1y in terms of knowledge 
gained, but in ter~s of the·degree to,which stud~nt's attitudes, 
social and ethical values, interests and commitment to 
scholarship change as ~ result of the institution~s curricular 
and co-curricular programs. The lack-of qualitative measur~s 
in non-academic areas results in guess-work when assessing 
institutional effectiveness in counseling, advising, or 
assessing the impact of an institution on the quality of 
students' lives. · 

Passaic County Community College has not addressed 
the directive to develop and implement a comprehensive 
program of outcome measures. Perhaps the obvious reason 
is the very fact that there is a relationship between goals 
and outcomes and until September 25, there was no official 
response to the College's goals. This lack of responsiveness 
uriderscores the precarious situation the administrative 
leadership and the Board have allowed to per~ist in spite 
of MSA's not too subtle communications with the College. 
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Nevertheless, the need to assess the outcomes of its 
current activities and the failure to broaden the range 
of outcome data it collects has hampered the ability of 
those charged with the development of a five-year plan 
to document the College's strengths and weaknesses. Moreover, 
the data collected through alumni/graduate surveys. academic 
program review, graduate writing examinations. and college 
placement examinations have been neither communicated widely 
nor used for planning purposes or decision-making. Information 
about graduates' satisfaction with courses or programs 
of study has not been analyzed to determine program expansion, 
revision or termination. Too often, the team found reports 
on institutional surveys simply describe the purpose or 
report the results without any attempt to analyze the results 
and make use of the analytical data. Program measures 
required for a uniforrncsystematic institution-wide program 
review are lacking. 

The Colleges' mission sta~ement, and its goals and 
· · objectives suggest that the College serves students and 

others in the county who ~ave personal goals ·and motives 
that do not involve. completing a degree. A multi-dimensional 
assessment plan must place some weight on t~is kind of 
student goal ~ttainment. Retention and attrition studies 
must consider these limited personal goals i.f an effective 
and useful o~tcome assessment plan is to emerge. ·In view 
of the above, the team recommenQs · 

• that Passaic County Community College develop a 
multi-dimensional outcome assessm~nt plan that; 

1. identifies constituent groups who have goals 
that do not lea~ to a degree and that will assess 
the College's effectivenes~ ~n meeting these 

· goals; 

2. collects and aggregates data on a student basis, 
program level and on an institution-wide level. 

(The "graduate writing examination" is one assessment 
tool currently in use in the College to determine· 
writing skill developmerit prior to graduation. 
Although used to as~ess stud.ent performance, 
aggregated at the program-level, this information 
could be used to improve the program teaching 
techniques· that address writing· deficiencies·. 
Aggregated at an institutional level over several 
years- the College could gain an. insight,·. into 
the~ ef'fec.t,i:veness-- of: t-t·s· inst~i~tut··iona·l' approach· 
t~o wri·t·ing·· skills) r 

./IX 
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• that the data gathered for outcomes assessment 
be analyzed and distributed to all units involved 
in developing the College's Five-Year Plan. 

Currently, the College engages in an academic review 
process whereby units establish short-term goals and objectives 
and an annual assessment process is used to determine the 
attainment of these goals. Through this process the faculty 
has managed to up-date or revise academic programs and 
curricular offerings, to standardize course syllabi and 
to revise course titles and descriptions. Lacking in this 
process are (1) the means whereby program goals are set 
in a planning context and tied to institutional goals, 

- (2) the communication of test, survey, interview data, 
program costs, and follbw-up studies to influence decisions, 
and (3) institutionally agreed upori standards for program 
review. The team recommends · 

• that the goals and objectives of-the academic and 
support units in the Collega be. directly related 
to institutional goals; 

• · that th~ College •gree upon colleg~-wide standards 
for systematically measuring the quality of· all­
academic programs in concert with faculty-ap-proved 
specific standards appropriate to the programs. 

Within a well developed ~lanning context, the team believes 
this type of program·outcome assessment will better allow · 
-the college to determine their program strengths and weaknesses. 

. . 

The Governing Board and Its.Reponsibilities: From. discussions 
with administrators, some ~embers of the Board of Tru~tees, 
and faculty, from correspondence and other documents related 
to t~e internal operations of the Board, it is clear that 

·more pro-active, decisive, ·harmoniou-s, and visionary leadership 
would. have. greatly assisted the College to recognize the 
need for plann.ing and to embrace an institutional planning 
process long before this critical juncture in the life 
of the College . 

. The long unacceptable delay by the Board of Trustees 
in addressing the issue of planning has forced the College 

tlX 
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to implement informally and unofficially goals submitted 
to the Board of Trustees three years ago. A tremendous 
amQU!l_!.. _of energy and _t_i __ fl!~_has been expended writing or 
responding to acri~Q~ious, invective, intimidating and 
somewhat threatening correspondence. This type of corre­
spondence has only served to exacerbate the College's planning 
pr~b~~s and has created a climate whereby serious policy 
issues survive only after a horrendous verbal assault, 
i! indeed tbeY-su~·ve-at all. . 

Moreoverj evidence suggests that the Board of Trustees 
has confused its role with that of its hired administrators. 
The Characteristics of Excellence state that "the governing 
board controls and supports but it does not manage or meddle 
in the day-to-day affairs of the institutio~." It also 
describes a Board as "the legally .constituted body that 
serves. that public interest by seeing that the insti~ution 
is what it is intended to be and that it -f-ulfills its announced 
mission and goals and ensures its continui-ty." It further 
states "In the hands and authority .of the Board are the · 
approved and publication of the-mission and goals, as well 
as the general plan for the institution." .. The lengthy 
delaY in addressing goals and the absence of a plan _do 
not suggest· a responsible commitment to the College· or 
to the.community and citize~s th~ College serves~ · 

One expects ~he Board to be an advocate and a defender 
of the College and to recognize that it is ul~imately resp9n~ible 
fOr the institution's integrity and quality. In its policy 
making role, ~he Board must move decisively to insure the 
viatiility of the institution. We do not believe this has 
been the case with the Board of Trustees of Passaic County 
Conununi ty College in ·helping the College to address the 
Middle States Association's concerns on the issues of planbing 
and· outcomes. 

Evidence suggests that _the team's view of the Board 
is shared by others in the College and even some Board 
members. Indeed, actions by the Board suggest an effort 
to correct·some of the conditions described above. The 
Passaic County Community College Retreat July 14-15, 1989, 
held with the President a freeholder and the Board of Tru~tees, 
representatives of the New Jersey State Department of Community 
Colleges and the Middle States Association, is one such 
effort. Growing out of this retreat, hopefully·· other efforts 

., ... 
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• 
toward corrective actions will reach fruition. Toward 
these ends, the team endorses the retreats "action items 
for the future." Specifically, we recommend 

• that the Board develop a formal "presidential· 
evaluation structure" to evaluate the performance 
of chief executive officer of the College. 

• that the Board of Trustees seek professional 
assistance in developing a governing board orientation 
program for all new members of the Board of Trustees. 

• that the Board not only examine the way in which 
it conducts its business but also through its by-laws 
or rules· set forth procedure$ and material requirements 
for its public meetings. · 

• that the Board leave the day-to-day management, 
execution .and implementation of College policies 
to its employed College administrator~. 

Planning: "Institutional goals and objectives provide 
the foundation for sound institutional planning.'' However, 
goals and objectives should not be confused with·an instittitional 
plan. On March 6, 1989, the Commission's action letter · · 
stated "The campus planning process as described in .the 
PRR is rudimentary at best." The team believes-this description, 
while a generous ·one, is adequate for the Pas~aic County 
Community College planning process_as·of the date of·the 
team's visit. 

Planning is minimally a matter of.prudent management. 
For Passaic County Community College J.t l.S a-matter Of 
survival. Man_y in the Coiiege, ~ncluaJ.ng the top adml.nlstratlon, 
have clearly demonstrated by their efforts an understand1ng 
of the significance of lannin· to the educational viabilit · 
of the College. over a three-year period. 
hav~ permitted the College to continue to be buffeted about 
by external ·economic, de~ographic 1 political and historical 
forces ra the.r than. ex~_re_is_e le..a,dership ip- determining the 
College's future through planning. The ''feverish" activity 
on the part.of the Board between July and October 1989 
is in marked contrast to the unresponsiv~nes~_of ~he· Board 
~ver~i ve-year ....Qerj...Q.Q .. ~.Q__Jj)e . ..Ri.§.J~U;l,i:ng · concerns· of the 
Middl~ States Association. · 

Tne·: Periodic· .. Rev.i.ew, Report carefuli.y addr.essed> recomrnen-­
dati.ons from:,a,preyi.ous .evaluation. but of~ necessity. produced 

rJX: 
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only a limited statement on planning. The Sept~mber 1 
update is best described as a "compliancet1 report constructed 
by a limited number of individuals with the objective of 
patching together a variety of on-going activities and 
events to create and present a picture of systematic planning. 

In creating a "sound foundation" for planning the 
College was well within the bounds of sound planning principles 
to begin with its goals and objectives. The fact that 
these were allowed to languish without action until September 
25 (1989) permitted no opportunity for the College to move 
forward in establishipg an institutional planning process 
or to complete a five-year plan. The team learned that 
until three weeks before the visit there was no single 
individual or group responsible for coordinating the planning 
process. Until September 25. there was nothing to be coordinated 
in the way of planning~ On that date however, the Boafd 
of-Trustees by resolution-directed the President "to so· 
marshall institutional resources and to direct appropriate 
staff to recommend by January 23, 1990, a comprehensive 
planning process for the Board's intentions." The Board 
further.instructed that " a completed five-year plan will 
be. proposed and-delivered to the Board on or before -its 
regular April 23, 1990 meeting ... " · 

The team's ~sses•ment of the planning ~rocess and 
the.results of planning at Passaic County Community College 
is as follows: 

• a realistic assessment o~ the instixution's 
resources has not been undertaken;· · 

• planning has not involved_the various constituencies 
in the College; 

• there has been no comprehensive approach 
to planning; 

• ~o planning priorities and no analysis of 
budget implications· for planning purposes 
exist; 

• the College currently lacks a person with 
the expertise for plarining; and 

10 



• there is a tendency to confuse short-term· 
operational planning or annual management 
oriented processes with long-range planning. 

While the College has a number of initiatives that may 
be promising (i.e., COEP) these represent separate disconnected 
activities undertaken without the benefit of an institutional 
planning context. 

The team believes that there is a direct relationship 
between an institution's planning and its viability. Planning 
must include an organized assessment of the College's internal 
and external needs. It must include all constituent groups 
in the College. In response to the Commission action-letter, 
it must have primarily an institutional focus. rather tban 

·a fragmented unit focus. ·It must be a process that recogn.iz~s 
the traditional responsibility of faculty· for academic 
and program standards, and program development. In view 
of the ab~ve, the team recomm~nds: 

• that the College secure the professional services 
of one well versed in planning to conduct training 
sessions ·in institutional·str~tegic plannin~ for · 
administrators, faculty, staff and Board members 
as soon as possible; 

• that the College develop a comprehensive. planning 
proce'ss that in·volves representatives of all con­
stituent groups; 

• that the plan· that emerges from the process be 
one that is a· comprehensive institutional plan 
that provides direction to the _Co~lege over the 
next five years; 

• that the College d~vise a means in its comprehensive 
planning process and in the plan that is developed 
to keep the Board, administrators, faculty, and 
when appropriate the students and community apprised 
of it$ progress in developing and implementing 
the.plan; and · 

• that the Board of Trustees and the freeholders 
use their influence to make the community aware 
of the need to fill. Board vacancies with those 

,sx 
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sensitive to the importance of Passaic County Commu­
nity College for those currently being served and 
to the College's potential in meeting the educational 
needs of those it has yet to serve. 

Passaic County Community College faces some significant 
challenges and decisions in its immediate future. In meeting 
these challenges, more than compliance with MSA's standards 
is needed. A cooperative Board dedicated to char~ing the 
best path possible for the College is the minimum requirement. 
Next, before one can decide what one must do, one must 
know confidently what one is and what one can.realistically 
accomplish at this stage in the College's development. 
Issues must be examined and the alternative courses of 
action carefully explored based on substantive documentation. 
To move forward in achieving these stage~ in plannlng; 
the Board of Trustees the administrators, the faculty and 
students must come together as a unified entity in the 
interest of post-secondary education in Passaic County. 

,' . 
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PCCC runs out of excuses 
A painful, emotional battle for control of 

Passaic County Co~munity College ended last 
week with the forced resignation of the presi­
dent, Kenneth Wright. Now that the fireworks 
are over, college and county leaders must patch 
up their di1ferences and get the troubled insti­
tution moving forward again. 

The Paterson-based college has accom­
plished much to boast about. While college en­
rollment nationwide is declining, enrollment at 
PCCC is up 20 percent over the last two.years. 
Two-thirds of its 3,100 students are blacks, 
Hispanics, or other minorities - people who in 
general are less likely than whites to get a col­
lege education. Many students at PCCC say the 
college iS their only 'chance to eam a ticket out 
of the numbing despair pervading Passaic 
County's most depressed neighborhoods. 

S~ll, the college has had problems manag­
ing its success. A report last year by .the Midqle 
States Association o( Colleges and Schools, the 
organization that oversees college accredita­
tion. concluded that .PCCC suffers from a ·lack 
of vision and an inability to assess its own 

strengths and weaknesses. The group noted 
that the college took five years to ratify a long­
range plan for growth drafted by administra­
tors in 1984. When the college didn't respond to 
the Middle States report, the organization 
threatened to withdraw its accreditation. 

Middle States didn't blame Mr. Wright for 
the college's difficulties. Instead, the organiza­
tion pointed a finger at the PCCC board of 
trustees, a sleepy assemblage burdened with 
more than its share of political hacks. But that 
wasn't the way the freeholders, who appoint the 
trustees, saw things. Led by Freeholder-Direc­
tor Richard A. DuHaime, · ·county leaders 
pushed for Mr. Wright's ouster. · 

. Mr. DuHaime and. his colleagues got their 
wish: Mr. Wright agreed to step down as j>resi­
dent early next month. It's not quite the mo­
ment of triumph that Mr. DuHaime portrays. 
It means the freeholders and trustees have no 
more excuses. The burden is now squarely on 
their shoulders to prove they're serious about 
giVirig Passaic County the first- rate college. it 
deserves. 



·coMMISSION ON HIGHER EDUCA T/ON 
3624 Market Street/ Philadelphia. PA 19104/ Tel (215) 662-5606/ Fax (215) 662·5950 

March 16, 1990 

Dr. Kenneth Wright 
Office of the President 
Passaic County Community College 
College Boulevard 
Paterson, New Jersey 07509 

Dear President Wright: 

At its sessions on February 28-March 1, 19SO, the Commission on 
Higher Education acted to require Passaic County Community College 
to show cause, by no later than October 1, 1990, why its 
accreditation should not be removed. If the College takes no 
action in response to this letter, its accreditation will be 
removed with no further notice, as of October 1, 1990. 

In light of the findings of the special team that visited the 
College in October1989, the Commission finds no evidence to allay 
its ongoing serious concerns about the College's progress in the 
areas o:f institutional planning and outcomes assessment. These 
concerns are also linked to larger issues of overall institutional 
operation, effectiveness, and financial and educational viability. 

These matters were bro~ght to the ·College's attention by the 
Commission when it deferred, on March 6, 1989, its consideration 
of the College's Periodic Review Report, pending the results of a 
small· team visit. The four ~embers of the team, with three New 
Jersey Department of Higher Education officials, and a Commission 
staff memb~r, visited th~ College October 19-20, .1989. 

Standards· ·for accredi~ation, as stated in Characteristic~ of 
Excellence in Higher Education and applicable to the Commis.sion 1 s 
concerns, include: (1) clearly stated mission, goals and 
obj~ctives appropri~te to the ins~itution's resources and the needs 
of its constituents; (2) persistent attention to the· relation 
between goals and outcomes; (3) a governing board actively 
fulfilling its responsibilities of policy and resource development; 
and (4) perceptive, imaginative, and ongoing institutional self­
study and planning procedures, aimed at intensifying the 
institu~ion's effectiveness in higher education. 

The following criteria from Characteristics of Excellence are 
relative to the most significant areas in which the College is 
perceived by the·.· Commission as no longer meeting the standards for 
Middle States accreditation: 

ID.G',,··B-.:..·~.-.. IJaL: .. ·.· 
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1. "Institutional goals and objectives must provide the 
foundation for sound institutional planning. The nature and 
quality of such planning--both short and long-range--are among 
the basic indicators of institutional strength. 
Planning activities should involve various constituencies in 
the continuous development of an institution. At its 
best, institutional planning stimulates imaginative and 
creative- proposais and approaches for strengthening the 
institution and enhancing its educational effectiveness, and 
includes means for implementing the plan. Continuous self­
study is an essential ingredient of such planning in a regular 
and systematic program of internal institutional research." 

2. The criteria of adequate and sound institutional planning are 
"realistic assessm~nt of the institution's resources and 
reexamination of working assumptions; opportunities for 
constituent participation; utilization of adequate data and 
awareness of their implications; and comprehensiveness .. •• 
Further, "provisions for follow through and evaluating the 
results of planning should be built into the.process." 

3. With regard· to outcomes and institutional effectiveness, 
."[t]he deciding factor in ~ssessing the effectiveness of any 
institution is evidence of the extent to which ~t achieves its 
goals and objectives. ~he necessity of seeking sueh evidence 
continually is inescapable; one of the primary hallmarks 6f 
faculty, administration, and· governing boarc;is is the. skill 
with which they rais~ questions about institutional 
effectiv•ness, seek answers_, and significantly improve 
procedures in 'the light of ·their findings. The approaches 
need be neither elaborate nor ~Qlely dependent on mechanical 
means, but they should be thorough, persistent and self­
sustaining. An institution should be able to demonstrate that 
the information obtained is used.as a basi~ for on-going self­
renewal. •• 

4. "Outcomes studies, if they are to be most productive, should 
accumulate useful data for institutional research and 
development. They can be directed at the fiscal and planning 
aspects of- an institution as well as at its educational 
programs. A measure of an institution's sophistication is its 
use of data_g~nerated through the sel£-study_process_and.its 
application to sound· planning and resource allocation." 

The t~am• s report noted the "noble effort" made by the· College· 
since its last accreditation visit in 1983, in administration 
reorganization, redefinition of administrative roles. and 
responsibi-lit·ies::~ development· of. goals· and· object·ives,: consist:en.t· 
with a: revised~ (19&4) mission statement, and greater~particip~tion. 
in its governance system. However, the'report clearly establishes 

I 'f',X. 
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that the College has made little progress in addressing the 
Commission's concerns regarding planning and outcomes assessment. 

There has been no comprehensive approach to planning. Planning has 
not involved the various constituencies of the College. The 
College has done little to develop and implement a coordinated, 
comprehensive program of outcome measures. Indeed, until recently, 
little . action· has been taken on the proposed revision of the 
College's stated goals. Based on the team's findings, the 
Commission views the College as having failed to respond 
satisfactorily to the Commission's long-standing concerns, 
communicated in the past to the College. 

Please be assured of the continuing interest of the Commission in 
the well-being of Passaic County Community College. Dr. John 
Eridkson, Associate Director, will coritact you shortly to discuss 
the Commission • s assisting the College to respond to this decision. 
Meanwhile; the Commission urges the College to formulate actions 

. in respon·se .to the findings· detailed in the report of the team 
visit in October 19~9, and carefully tci revie~ the efforts of the 
College-to comply with the standards set forth in Characteristics 
of Excellence~ 

Attached is a copy of . the Commission's Review and: Appea.~s 
Procedure, adopted pursuant to Article IV of the Association's By­
Laws, effective December 4, 1987 .. These procedures are based ·upon 
Article IX·· of the By-Laws, in effect prior to December 1987. 
Please note that, if you desire to. do so, you· may file· an appeal 
from the Com.mission's decision with the Commission's Executive 
Committee ~ithiri thirty days oi receipt of this letter. 

Sincerely yours, 

Sarah Blanshei 
Chair 

m:nj0320.jhe 
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Reveleod Robert E. Hanbaa is Appoimed Rector/DeaD of lbe Imm..V•• 
Ccol:eptioo Seminary/Scbool oflbeology ar Seton HaD UniYasily 

Reverend Roben E. Harahan has been .appointed rector of Immaculate Conception 
Seminary /School of Theology at Seton Hall University by Archbishop Theodore E. 
McCarrick of Newark. The appointment was announced by Monsignor Richard M. 
Liddy, acting chancellor of Seton Hall University, who in consultation with the 
Archbishop. appointed Father Harahan dean of the School. 

Father Harahan is an assistant professor of moral theology, chair of the 
pastoral/moral theology depanment and director of admissions at Immaculate 
Conception Seminary. He also serves on the Fonnation Team of the Seminary. 

Father Harahan was appointed to succeed Monsignor Liddy, who left the post in 
January to serve as acting chancellor. Liddy's five-year tenn as rector/dean was due 
to expire in June. 

CqnmunilJ Colleps 

Passaic Couury C6+11nwmiry Conep Middle Stares Acaeditarioo 

As you know, Passaic County Freeholder Director Richard A. DuH3.ime recently 
called Jor the resignations of all appointed members . of the Passaic County 
Comml)nity College Board of Trustees who were serving at the time of the visit of 
~Middle States Association team ill October 1989, and of the p~ident of Passaic 
County .Community College. 1be ~holders"' action was based· up<>n an earlier •.·. 
report of the Middle Stares team. I confinned a similar conversation I had had with .._ 
the President. Subsequently, the college .received an Action Lener from the 
Conunission on Higher Education· of the Middle States Association requiring the 
college to show cause why its· accreditation .. should not be removed. On March 27, 
the Faculty ·Association of the· college petitioned the Board of Trustees to insist on 
the immediate resignation of the president. According ·to the college, however, the. 
_trustees decided to postpone a decision on whether to request the president's 
.resignation and to spend.several months evaluating the president's per;fonnance. On 
March 29, President Wright announced his intention to remain in his position. On 
April 9, Trustee Severin Palydowycz ·submitted his resignation to the· Board of 

. Chosen Freeholders. 

In· keeping with our accustomed cooperation with ~ddle States and the licensure 
responsibilities of the Board of Higher Education, ·Department staff accompanied a 
representative of the Middle States Association to the college on April 9 and 10 and 
met with trustees and members of the college staff. We will continue to work closely 
with Middle States in this matter. 

On Aprill2, at the invitation of the Freeholder Director, I met with represent,tives of 
the Passaic County Board of Chosen Freeholders and representatives of the Board of · 
Trustees, and President Wright. At that meeting. I expressed my concerns about the 
credibility of the college's present leadership and the effect that lack of credibility 
could >have on.students~ confidence in the college. I urged trustees to consider 
whether new presidential leadership might· be in dte best interests of the community. 
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Subsequently, Assemblyman William J. Pascrell, Jr., 3Sth Disfrict, infomied me of 
his intention to conduct public hearings in Passaic County on the future of Passaic 
County Community College. 

On April 16, I learned that President Wright had addressed the Council of County 
Colleges in a lengthy letter alleging conduct by Department staff raising "issues of 
treatment of confidential Middle States information, autonomy of governing 
boards .... availabiliry of due process on matters of employment .... " and "agreements 
with the Council about process." I have wrinen to the Council stating the facts about 
the Depanment · s handling of infonnation relative to Passaic County Community 
College and setting forth my position that confidentiality of communications between 
the Chancellor and individual presidents on matters· of grave institutional concern 
such as potential loss of accreditation and lack of presidenti8.1 creclibility is essential 
to the exercise of statewide educatioinalleadership by the Board of Higher Education. 

I continue to have grave concerns about the stability of the institution and am 
prepared to take any appropriate measures to assure the strengthening of the college's 
leadership. I will monitor this situation closely ~d will_keep you infonned. 

Hudsoa Coomy Cooaunity cOllege Fact-P"mding Team 

The members of the Department Fact-Finding Team that will be visiting Hudson 
County Community College, beginning Wednesday, April 11, 1990, include the 
following: Leonard T. Grant (Chair), Independent College Fund of New York; 
Jerome Contee, Assistant Director, Office of Institutional Relations; Gene Hutchins, 
Director, Account.ing ·Operations; Brett Lief, Deputy Assistant Chancellor, Office of 
Student Assistance; Anthony · Lutkus, Director, Basic Skills; David 'Scheatz.le, 
AS.sistant Director, Management Compliance and Paul Snyder, Assistant Director of 
Program Review. Additionally, Grey Dimenna, Director of Govenunental Affairs, 
~d staff of the Office of Community Colleges will provide technjcal assistance and 
coordination for~ team. ·Qayl Mazuco, Deputy Attorney General, will serve ·as. 
coWlSel to the team. · · · 

Pursuant to the March 16, 1990, resolution ·of the Board of Higher Education and 
under its statutory authority, the team has been charged _to: · 

determine the efficacy of.all procedures employed at the college and to make · 
specific recommendations on· the steps required for the correction of . 
deficiencies where they exist. In addition. the team will assess the status of the 
institution and make a recommendation· to me regarding whether the .licensure 
of the institution should be removed. Specifically, the worlt of the team would 
include: 

1. reviewing the operation of the college as it relates to concerns expressed 
by the Commission on Higher Education and the college's adherence to 
state statutes and regulations. 

,;..1-X 
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April 26, 19~0 

Mr. Kenneth E. Wright 
President 
Passaic County Community College 
Co~lege Boulevard 

· Paterson, New Jer~ey 07509 

Dear Ken: 

As you are aware, Freeholder DuHaime brought together several Passaic 
Board of Trustee members and freeholders on. April 12 to discuss the immediate 
concerns of the Middle States Association in order to preserve ~~ssaic County 

·CommUnity College's accreditation. Althouah. you were present at t·ha·t meeting 
I want to share· with. ·you, onee again, the remarks and concerns I expres~ed to 
the freeholders and board members. 

As I have i~dicated,· my obligation is and has be~n to assure the 
·continued accreditation of Passaic County Community College. The sianificance 
of the MSA show cause action and its implications for the institution are a 
serious issue for all of us. · 

The major findings of the MSA review team which led to PCCC's being 
issued a show cause order, indicate deficiencies in areas of institutional 
planning and outcomes assessment. Among these deficiencies, the team found 
that: 

"a realistic assessment of the institution's resources has not been 
undertaken; 
planning has not involved the various constituencies in th• 
College; 
there has been no comprehen~ive approach to planning; 
_no planning. priorities and. no analysis of budget. implications for 
pl3nning purposes ~~ist; 
the·College currently lacks a person with the expertise--for 
planning·;·· and> 
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there is a tendency to confuse short-term operational planning or 
annual management-oriented processes with long-r8l).ge planning." 

The MSA action letter identified these deficiencies as "linked to larger 
issues of institutional operations, effectiveness, and financial and 
educational viability." These deficiencies are symptomatic of a breakdown in 
governance and institutional leadership. 

Ibis serious action of a show cause order places the burden of proof on 
PCCC to show cause why accreditation should not be removed. It is equally 
important that PCCC counter the possible adverse effect this shew cause order 
may have on students' and others' confidence in the continuing opportunities 
for access to quality community college education in Passaic County. _ 

As you know, the Board of Higher Education ordinarily accepts MSA 
accreditation of an institution as sufficient grounds for continuance of its 
licensure. The Department has established an agreement with MSA stipulating 
the· policies and procedures the Department adheres ·to for the accreditation 
and licensure process. This includes acknowledgement of the confidential 
nature of MSA reports and· action letters until sueh time as the institution 
chooses to publicly 4iscuss and distribute these materials. In the case of 
PCCC, it is my understanding that the MSA team report was discussed and 
distributed to the Board of Trustees, Freeholders, p~ess and DB! staff at the 
P'ebruary 2-3, 1990. Board of ':frustees retreat. The Department received a copy 
of· the MSA action letter," dated Mareh 16, 1990, .from the Passaic County 
Freeholder Office on March 26, 1990. The institution PJade both documents 
public prior to sharing the materials with the Department .. 

As a. result of the October 1989, Middle States team report, the Board ·of 
. Chosen Freeholders and tne Faeul ty Association of the eollege expressed· no · 

confidence in present leadership at the institution. The Faculty Associacioo, 
in the interest of a healthy, academi~ally sound· and independent collese, 

~howed great courage in urging the Board of Trustees to insist on the 
. immediate resignation of the president. The Middle States show. cause order is .c( 

of such significance and raises such serious questions about the viability of 
·an institution of higher education, that it is not unusual,·regardleaa of 
individual ~om?eteney, to ~pect the chief uecut5.ve to step aside. That is a 
difficult ·decision for any individual, but very often it is a decison that is 
in the best. ;interest of the institution. 

I believe that PCCC has a strong faculty committed to providing the best 
education possible to students. The student body is highly motivated for 
higher education. the viability of this college is of vital importance to the 
citizens of Passaic County, and especially to its urban constituents. 
Faculty, students'and county citiz~ns deserve effe~tive leadersh~p. 

The most critical issue· now facing the PCCC community and the Department 
is· what to do to assure that PCCC maintains its accreditation. At the meeting 
on April 12, I emphasized that the Board of Trustees has the authority and 
responsibility to take:whatever action it deemed necessary to maintain the 
institution'' s. accreditation,. to make,-· critical decisions .. ancL generate· the· 
fiscal and .. other· resources, the College needs. to survive,. and to re--establish 
institutional and administrative credibility in the eyes of the. PCCC 

.hS'X .. 
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community and constituents. The significance of the MSA show cause action and 
its implications for the institution are of serious import to all of us. The 
time for responding to MSA concerns about planning and outcomes is also the 
time for renewal of a strong leadership team that can make critical decisions 
and generate the f isc:al and other resources necess-ary to preserve the 
institution's accreditation, viability, and instit\ltional and administrative 
credibility. 

c 

Sincerely, 

T. Edward Hollander 
Chancellor 

William Pasc:rell, Jr., Assemblyman/ 
Members, Passaic: County Community College Board of Trustees 
Richard Du Haime, Freeholder Chair 
Passaic County Board of Chosen Freeholders 
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